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KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
Annual Report sent to Shareholders
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Annual General Meeting)
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Annual General Meeting)
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(for final dividend)
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DEFINITIONS

B®

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the

following expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Board”

“Chia Hsin Cement”

“CHPL”

“Company”

“Director(s)”

“Group”

“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

the board of Directors

Chia Hsin Cement Corporation, a
parent company of a substantial
shareholder, CHPL

Chia Hsin Pacific Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and a substantial shareholder of the

Company

TCC International Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the
Ordinary Shares of which are listed on

the Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency

of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“Listing Rules”

“New Convertible

Preference Shares”

“Offer Shares”

“Open Offer”

person(s) or company(ies) which is
(are) independent of the directors,
supervisors, controlling shareholder,
substantial shareholder and the chief
executive (such terms as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or an associate

of any of them

the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange

the 494,344,810 restricted voting
convertible preference shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company, which were allotted and

issued pursuant to the Open Offer

Unlisted New Convertible Preference
Shares to be offered to the qualifying
shareholders for subscription pursuant
to the Open Offer, being 494,344,810

New Convertible Preference Shares

the issue by way of open offer of
three (3) unlisted Offer Shares for
every twenty (20) Ordinary Shares
in issue and held on 8 November
2011 to the qualifying shareholders
at the subscription price on the terms
and subject to the conditions set
out in the prospectus issued on 9
November 2011
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DEFINITIONS
ES

“Ordinary Shares”

“PRC”

“RMB”

“SFO”

“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”
“substantial

shareholders”

“T’"Cement”

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in

the share capital of the Company

the People’s Republic of China, which
for the purposes of this annual report
excludes Hong Kong, the Macao
Special Administration Region and

Taiwan

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of
PRC

Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

a registered holder(s) of Ordinary

Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

has the same meaning ascribed

thereto in the Listing Rules

Taiwan Cement Corporation, a
company incorporated in Taiwan,
the shares of which are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and which,
through its wholly owned subsidiary,
is holding 56.49% of the issued share
capital of the Company

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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“Tcar

“Upper Value”

‘US$”

“op”

TCC International Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and a substantial shareholder

of the Company

Upper Value Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company
United States Dollars, the lawful
currency of the United States of

America

per cent

[TCCI]

[Upper
Value |
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE i E

During the year 2011, Mainland China witnessed a dramatic
upsurge in cement product average selling price. The country’s
stable economic development and the State government’s heavy
commitment in infrastructure build-up had sustained a robust
demand for construction material.

Embracing the cement industry’s favourable operating
environment, the Group was able to optimise the utilisation of its
additional capacity from recent acquisitions to broaden its sales
at improved margins. The Group has been pursuing a strategy
of establishing an influential presence in various regions with
sustainable cement demand in Mainland China. This had been
achieved through the acquisition of enterprises with sizeable
capacity in operation or under construction in the Group’s
targeted markets. The Group’s effort to enlarge its scale of
operation and revenue base via incorporation of facilities offering
synergetic advantage to its operations, has enlisted it among the
top cement conglomerates in Mainland China.

In addition to the growth in size, the Group further strengthened
its earnings through stringent cost control and efficient utilizing of
facilities and resources. The results of its effort were evidenced
by the heightened gross and net margins during the year under
review.

In accordance to the blue print of the Group’s corporate
expansion, there would be a certain number of new production
lines commencing operation or with their contributions beginning
to be consolidated into the Group’s accounts each year. These
additional contributions are expected to maintain the Group’s
growth momentum.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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We will persist with our two-pronged expansion approach,
with an emphasis on markets we already have a presence.
The Group’s further merger and acquisition will be targeting at
facilities that can serve to consolidate or enhance its existing
market position. In light of the State government’s restriction
on new capacity development, we will push forward the
Group’s organic expansion through collaboration with local
government. In this respect, we have reached an agreement
for the development of a cement production base in Shaoguan,
Guangdong to address the area’s shortage in cement supply.
In Northern China, the Group is negotiating with a municipal
government for the erection of an urban waste treatment plant to

be supported by its cement production line.

Growing environmental consciousness in Mainland China
dictates that new cement plants should both be economically
efficient and environmentally friendly. To cope with the State’s
relevant policies, all of the Group’s cement production lines are
equipped with residue heat power generation units that can
reduce discharge and lower energy consumption. To preserve
the landscape and maintain a pleasant and healthy working
environment, massive vegetation was planted around the
Group’s plants. In addition to its plan for a cement plant with
the capability of urban waste treatment, the Group continues to
study ways to consume more recycled materials in its production

process.
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QOutlook for the cement market in 2012 has been shaded by
the State government’s lowered GDP growth target for the year
2012. It is uncertain to what extent would fixed asset investment
be affected. Furthermore, there is no sign of relaxation in the
State’s austerity measures against hiked property prices, and
private residential development is expected to slow down.

However, the State government’s determination to maintain
steady economic development driven by domestic demand has
not been altered. Escalated development of rural areas and
intensified urbanization are expected to remain the mainstream
demand for cement, in addition to continuation of public sector
civil engineering works. The government’s scheme for 36 million
units of affordable housing during the Twelfth Five-Year Plan
would be implemented in phases. It is anticipated that at least 7
million units of affordable housing will commence construction in
2012.

Over the past few years, the cement industry in Mainland
China has been undergoing a gradual transformation under the
direction of State policy. The elimination of low-efficient small
plants and the promotion of consolidation of cement enterprises
into larger conglomerates had resulted in a more regulated
market environment. However, the race for regional market
dominance and extending operation platforms have forced
leading cement players into direct competition for acquisition
targets. Such scenario has inevitably complicated the process of
merger and acquisition.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Our vision of building an operation portfolio extending from the
south to the southwest and the northeast of Mainland China,
across many of the country’s hotspots for urbanization and
infrastructure development, had been gradually realized in recent
years. The Group’s extensive business platform now covers
the provinces of Guangdong, Guangxi, Fujian, Jiangsu, Anhui,

Chongaging municipality, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan and Liaoning.

As the Mainland China’s cement industry deepening its
structural reform, the Group needs to maintain its operational
and geographical expansion to reinforce its dominant position
in Southern China and extend its market influence to the
Southwestern region. It is imperative for the Group to emerge as
an efficient and respectable conglomerate in a cement market
gradually consolidated under a cluster of regional and national

leading players.

Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
Chairman

Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET OVERVIEW

The world economy in 2011 was clouded by stagnation of major
industrial economies and the escalation of sovereign debt crisis
in Europe. However, the Chinese economy maintained its healthy
growth momentum supported by robust domestic demand.
Driven by continued infrastructure development and intensified
urbanization, fixed asset investment in Mainland China in 2011

leaped by 24 per cent year-on-year.

Benefiting from the State’s steady economic development, the
cement industry attained astonishing results in the year 2011.
The strong average selling price (“ASP”) of cement products
prevailed during the year under review in the Mainland market
had contributed to heightened gross profit for most of the cement

manufacturers.

Despite the State government’s severe austerity measures to
curb the Mainland’s overheat property market, and tightened
credit policies to keep domestic inflation at bay, demand for
construction materials remained strong in the first three quarters
of 2011.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A r\%) /T\NAALYSIS
B P 5

The commencement of large scale hydraulic engineering works
and other public utilities and property development carried
forward from previous years continued to fuel heavy cement
consumption. Massive habitation in city outskirts and counties
surrounding metropolitan area had created substantial demand

for construction materials to support intensified urbanization.

During the year 2011, the Mainland China market consumed a
total of 2,080 million metric tons of cement, which represented
a 12 per cent surge from that of 2010. ASP of cement reached
its peak in the second quarter of the year 2011. However, the
slowdown in various infrastructure development and tightened
credit control had restrained further fixed asset investment in the
fourth quarter of the year under review. As a result, cement ASP

declined in the face of shrinking demand.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The exceptionally strong demand during the low season in the
first half of 2011, and escalated closure of obsolete cement
facilities had pushed up cement ASP for the full year, despite a

retreat in the last quarter of the year.

When the heat of the State government’s austerity measures
and stringent credit policies was felt in the second half of the
year, private housing development began to slow down. Capital
for infrastructure construction, including high speed railway
development, was also tightened. The delay in the progress or
implementation of public sector projects had inevitably impacted

the consumption of cement.

In spite of the moderation of the Group’s performance in the
second half of the year due to the abovementioned factors, the
Group achieved a 20 per cent growth in sales volume, amounting

to 34.2 million metric tons, for the full year.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
was HK$11,266.2 million, representing a 38.6 per cent upsurge
year-on-year. Following the consolidation of the Upper Value full
year accounts and the running in of various recently launched
facilities, the Group managed to enlarge its gross profit margin
to 25.6 per cent. The positive impact of synergy and economies
of scale had contributed to the Group a full year gross profit of
HK$2,888.8 million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
was 1.09 times higher than that of the previous year and
amounted to HK$1,637.9 million.

The Group’s aggressive expansion over the past few years,
through organic growth as well as merger and acquisition,
has established for it an operation portfolio spanning over
nine provinces and one municipality, covering the Southern,
Southwestern, Northeastern and Eastern markets of Mainland
China. A diversified geographical coverage enables the Group to
maintain a more stable gross profit margin, and therefore to be

less susceptible to volatility in individual markets.
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Sales volume breakdown Cement and clinker ASP
by region in 2011 by region
:és—‘—fﬁfttlzluiillﬁ RES D ZKER
Z B BRI THEE
- RMB/metric ton
NGNS

5% 6%

300 / /.

250 ——

200 ./
Northeastern 51t | 1.9 milion metric tons & & 721
Eastern ZE5 | 5.6 milion metric tons & A 150
21.0 million metric tons & & A1
Southwestern FEI | 4.0 milion metric tons & 2 21
Others ELft | 1.7 milion metric tons & 21 100

2010 2011
Total sales volume : 34.2 million metric tons @ Northeastern %1t @ Eastern 5%
HGHE  34.2B B HE A Southwestern 7

Southern China e
As the Group's traditional stronghold, Southern China’s EH-—BEASENEZEMSRE  ZiR
operations remained a major contributor to the Group’s MEBEEAAEEHEER T TR EER

performance both in terms of sales and profit. IR e
Southern China is a mature market with stable demand. With a EEE—EARRATS FREBEE - ARETEE
handful of key players commanding a lion’s share of the market, SHEENBT REH TG0 E  WkiEm KR

the region’s cement ASP is less volatile when compared with EHEEBRE MM R K EE ) -

other geographical regions.
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Sales volume of the Group’s Southern China region, which
comprised operations in Guangdong and Guangxi provinces,
basically remained the same as that of the previous year. The
region’s enhanced operating profit was mainly attributable to

improvement in cement ASP.

In Guangdong province, the Group’s two major facilities, namely
TCC Yingde Cement Co.,
Cement Co, Ltd.,
of 14.6 million metric tons, or over 40 per cent of the Group’s

Ltd and Yingde Dragon Mountain

in Yingde together generated a sales volume

total sales volume. The Group’s 25 per cent minority interests
in Prosperity Conch Cement Co., Ltd. in Yingde, Guangdong

continued to generate a favourable return.

Being a dominant player in the province, the Group was able
to maintain an orderly market environment with other major

manufacturers.

During the year, sales volume of the Group’s Guangxi plant
amounted to approximately 7.5 million metric tons, which was
more or less the same level of 2010. A significant portion of the
Group’s Guangxi plant output was sold to Guangdong and Fujian
provinces, including 940,000 metric tons of clinker shipped to its
Fuzhou Plant.

Cement ASP in Guangxi had been lifted by shrunken supply
under the pressure of power shortage during the third quarter
of the year. The ASP retreated in the fourth quarter following the

relaxation of power supply.

NAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Eastern China
Vibrant development of both public and private sector projects
and severe restriction in electricity supply had supported a strong

cement ASP in the region during the year.

The Group’s plant in Jurong reported a 36 per cent surge in
cement ASP on a year-on-year basis. In addition, the plant’s
profitability was further strengthened by improved cost-efficiency.
The aforementioned factors contributed to significant upsurge in
the Jurong plant’s profit, despite minimal change in sales volume

during the year.

Strong demand for and high selling prices of cement and clinker
in Eastern China had significantly raised the cost of raw material
for the Group’s grinding plant in Fuzhou. To effectively control
material costs, the Group began to transport clinker from its

Guigang plant in Guangxi to Fuzhou during the year.

Performance of the Fuzhou plant also benefited from high cement

ASP and favourable demand in the Eastern China region.

Sales volume from the Group’s Eastern China operations

amounted to 5.6 million metric tons during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Southwestern Region
The Group’s operations in Southwestern region comprise of
facilities in Chongqging, Sichuan and Guizhou provinces, as well

as minority interests in two Yunnan cement plants.

The Group’s Chongging plant operates two production lines. The
first one commenced operation in October 2010, and became
operational for the first full year in 2011. The second production
line only started running in the last quarter of 2011. The two
production lines generated a total sales volume of 2.4 million

metric tons during the year under review.

In the first two quarters of the year, the Chongqging plant
performed satisfactorily with its production line running at
close to full capacity. Entering the second half of the year, with
substantial new capacity launched in Chongging and Sichuan
provinces, the plant’s cement ASP was under pressure from
influx of excess supply from the surrounding area. As a result, the

Chongaing plant reported an insignificant profit during the year.

7 it &
AEEAAEBENESBESREREE WA
T &M A 8% e DA K2 7 32 R PR SR KR TR A D 8
f% B8 A %% o
AEBHNEEMESEMELEER - F—KEE
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GEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s production line in Guangan, Sichuan province
commenced operation in the second half of the year. Since the
production line was inaugurated for less than six months and
suffered from severe price competition, it thus reported a minimal
loss for the year under review. The Sichuan plant generated a

total sales volume of 830,000 metric tons in 2011.

The Group owns two production lines in Guizhou. The first
production line became operational in July 2011, and began with
supplying clinker until the inauguration of its grinding mills. The
second production line in Guizhou was still under construction

during the year.

To entrench its position in Guizhou, the Group has announced,
during the year, the acquisition of two additional production lines
with annual capacities of 1 million and 1.2 million metric tons
respectively; acquisition of the former was completed in late
October 2011 while the latter only commenced operation at the
end of the year. These smaller plants are designed to service the
highly segregated local markets over the mountainous terrain of

the province.

The Group reported a sales volume of 804,000 metric tons
from Guizhou. Since most of their production lines were only in
operation for a few months, the Guizhou operations experienced

losses during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Northeastern Region

The Group’s Liaoning plant in Northeastern China enjoyed an
over 50 per cent increase in cement ASP, resulting in significantly
broadened gross profit margin during the year. The Liaoning plant
sold a total of approximately 1.9 million metric tons of cement
and clinker, and generated a handsome profit, as opposed to a

minimal loss in the previous year.

Favourable results for the Liaoning plant were mainly attributable
to high cost efficiency, and effective regulation of supply in

response to a stable market demand.

Others

In addition to production of cement and clinker, the Group has
strategic interests in two slag powder joint ventures. The two
companies continued to perform satisfactorily and generated
an aggregated sales volume of 1.3 million metric tons of slag

powder.

Hong Kong

The Group’s Hong Kong operations capitalized on the boom
of the domestic construction sector to deliver a sales volume
of 470,000 metric tons of cement. Strong demand and hiked
ASP for cement and ready-mixed concrete had translated into
favourable profit contribution to the Hong Kong operations during

the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B W B o

OTHER SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year under review, there were disposals of overseas
listed held-for-trading investments which resulted in a gain
on disposal of held-for-trading investments amounted to
approximately HK$24.2 million (2010: Nil). As at 31 December
2011, a net decrease in fair value of approximately HK$3.6 million
was recognized for held-for-trading investments upon stating
them at market prices (2010: increase HK$59.2 million). As at
31 December 2011, the carrying amount of held-for-trading
investments was approximately HK$84.9 million (2010: HK$327.1

million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND NET GEARING RATIO

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in managing cash

resources and bank borrowings.

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2011 are as

HttfiisEARE

REBEFE AEBLHEBNETRIERS A
BERE EELERERSARKREZ S
#124,200,0008 T (Z T —ZTF: &) - R =T
——F+ZA=+—RH EMBEK2ME
EREARERIABRREZATFEFREIL
3,600,000/ 7t ( =& — = 4 : #% )N59,200,000
BIL) MZTE——F+ZA=+—8 #HEX
S RABRAE 2 RHEEAL 484,900,000/ 7T (=
T — T4 1 327,100,000 7T ) °

RBES MBER BEFARBRF
EERELR
AEERABREZBEERENERREERR

RITIEE -

AEER-_ZE——F+_A=+—HZR#

follows: beagi(1 I N
2011 2010
= —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Current assets A E 9,297,158 7,263,395
Current liabilities mEaE 8,380,865 6,325,390
Current ratio VS 1.11 1.15

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2011 was 1.11
(2010: 1.15). The change was mainly attributable to the increase
in short term bank loans. The current ratio as at 31 December

2011 maintained at a healthy level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December
2011 amounted to HK$3,766.7 million (2010: HK$3,377.3
million), of which HK$134.3 million (2010: HK$29.5 million)
was pledged for general banking facilities or as performance
guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.
Highly liquid short term investments, classified as held-for-trading
investments, with a market value of HK$84.9 million as at 31
December 2011 (2010: HK$327.1 million), were also held by the
Group.

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December

2011 are repayable as follows:

o BRI i S a3 B

R-_ZT——F+-_A=+—B XA£EEZHE
MER1T 45 8448 %0 A3,766,700,0008 7L ( =& —
= 4F : 3,377,300,0007% 7T.) * £ #134,300,000
BT (ZZF—=4F 29,500,000/ 70) B A — K
RITRMEEERIARE THEXRBEEOZ
BHRE - R_T——F+=-A=1+—8 4%
& 7i45 8 M {E 584,900,000 L (T —ZF4:
327,100,000 70) Z D AR EX Z BB E
ZEmEIERERE -

RZB——F+_A=+—H AKEERTE
R B EERER T

2011 2010

—B——fF —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT TAET

Within one year R—FR 3,771,517 3,529,456
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FENHEAMSF

two years 2,199,867 4,293,609
More than two years but not exceeding  fBiBMFE BB A F

five years 5,678,849 3,427,959

Over five years AFELE - 768,000
Carrying amount of bank loans that RNERBERZL AR

are repayable on demand due to TREEZRITERZ

breach of loan covenants AREE (BRI E

(shown under current liabilities) BEET) 1,537,500 -

Total bank loans RITE AR 13,187,733 12,019,024

There was no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s
borrowing requirement. As at 31 December 2011, HK$3,223.1
million of the bank loans was denominated in HK$, HK$5,195.0
million in US$ and HK$4,769.6 million in RMB. All of the bank

loans are of floating rate structures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The net gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2011 are AEBR-_T—F+A=T—HZFEE

as follows: BELEWAT:
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Total bank loans RITE KB 13,187,733 12,019,024
Senior notes BEREE - 139,396
Total borrowings BEEBE 13,187,733 12,158,420
Less: Cash and bank balances, time IR MIRTTE R
deposits and pledged bank BT B R
deposits DHEIRITER (8,766,725) (3,377,316)
Net borrowings EEFE 9,421,008 8,781,104
Equity attributable to owners of the RAGHEE AEGER
Company 14,942,953 10,612,380
Net Gearing ratio FEEARMGE 63.0% 82.7%

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s net gearing ratio,
expressed as the ratio of net borrowings divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was 63.0% (2010:
82.7%). The change in the Group’s net gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the new bank loans raised by the Group for the
capital expenditure and the issuance of the 494,344,810 non-
redeemable convertible preferences shares during 2011. The net

gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 maintained at a healthy

level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3,271.1 million, of which

HK$662.9 million was arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

On 26 May 2011, the Group have entered into a conditional
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with Chien Kuo
Construction Co., Ltd and certain of its subsidiaries (“Chien
Kuo”, an independent third party to the Group). Under the
Framework Agreement, the Company and its subsidiaries agreed
to acquire from Chien Kuo the entire equity interest of three PRC
companies, in Guigang, Jiangsu and Yingde, which are engaged
in the provision of limestone quarrying services in the PRC. The
total consideration amounted to NTD1,600,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$435,680,000), which shall be satisfied
by cash and are payable under the terms of the Framework
Agreement. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has paid certain
amount of initial deposits. The transaction was pending for
completion subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions under
the Framework Agreement. For details of the transaction, please

refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26 May 2011.

o BRI i S a3 B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 29 June 2011, TCC International (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“TCC International HK”), being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Master Agreement
(the “Master Agreement”) with the Quijiang People’s Government
under which, among other matters, TCC International HK
has agreed that it or its subsidiary will set up a project
company in the Quijiang District, Shaoguan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC for the project of the construction of a
new cement production base, among others, two new dry-
process clinker production lines, four sets of cement grinding
production lines, a residual heat generation unit and a port
(the “Project”). Whether the Project will proceed is subject
to various government approvals, including the approval by
National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC,
which may or may not be obtained. On the basis that the
Group’s investment under the Master Agreement will proceed,
the total investment by the Group pursuant to the Agreement is
estimated to be RMB1,850,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,220,000,000). For details of the investment, please refer to

the Company’s announcement dated 29 June 2011.

On 4 August 2011, Upper Value, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an Acquisition
Agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Independent Third
Parties for the acquisition of approximately 97.94% of the issued
share capital of Scitus Cement (China) Holdings Limited. As at 31
December 2011, the Group has paid certain amount of deposits.
The transaction was subsequently completed on 6 January 2012.
For details of the transaction, please refer to the Company’s

announcement dated 4 August 2011.

Save for aforesaid, the Group had no significant investment,

material acquisitions or disposals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

To strengthen the Group’s capital base and to provide financial
resources for working capital and expansion needs, on 7
September 2011, the Company announced an Open Offer of
494,344,810 New Convertible Preference Shares at a price of
HK$4.90 per Offer Share. The Open Offer was completed on
1 December 2011 and the total net proceeds of approximately
HK$2,418.6 million were raised by the Company, which were
applied towards the intended use of funding as stated in the
prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS

As stated in the prospectus dated 9 November 2011, the Group
had plans to use the proceeds obtained from the Open Offer. The
proceeds have been partially utilised. The amount applied to the
intended use of proceeds and the residual balance to be used as
at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

o BRI i S a3 B

KEEH
BNEREE s EAEREAEEES RIER
ERREMHBEER R-T—FNLA+H XK
NAEMEREREERKHI0B T ZEEAR
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Residual
balance to
Intended be used
use of Used during as at
proceeds the year 31.12.2011
R-B——F
Fr8&E +=-A=+-H
BERRZ RERER HKBTFERZHE
HKS$million HK$million HK$million
BEET BEET BEET
) Share acquisition and i) REEENESIEET
repayment of certain B RERET
shareholder loans under MR E T
the Scitus Acquisition 1,367.0 (39.0) 1,328.0
i) Repayment of certain bank iy EEAKEAETETH
or other borrowings HMEE
of the Group 900.0 (900.0) -
i) General working capital i) —MEEES 150.7 (150.7) -
2,417.7 (1,089.7) 1,328.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B W B o

There was no material deviation from the stated use of the

proceeds from the New Convertible Preference Shares.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposits amounting to HK$134.3
million have been pledged by the Group as security for the letters
of credit and similar obligations provided by banks in regard to
the Group’s purchase of plant equipments and as performance

guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.

As at 31 December 2011, certain property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments and mining rights have been
pledged to secure bank loans of the Group with the carrying
amount of HK$3,612.8 million, HK$799.3 million and HK$117.1

million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURES

The Group utilized various methods to mitigate foreign currency
exposures arising from the currency mismatch of construction
material purchases and sales. To protect the benefits of
Shareholders, cost-efficient hedging methods will be considered

in future foreign currency transactions.

No foreign exchange contracts were outstanding as at 31
December 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MAJOR CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s capital expenditure in
respect to the following items contracted but not provided for in

the financial statements are as follows:

o BRI i S a3 B

TEERAR
RZZE——F+ZA=+—8 KAEEHR T
BHZEANERRMBREBH 2 AR
m

HK$'000

FET

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEL&EE 1,092,406
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lt B Bt /B8 1 ) 1,078,166
2,170,572

The Group anticipates funding those commitments from its

internal resources and bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 7,465 full-time
employees. Total expenses in wages and salaries of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to HK$431.1
million. Discretionary bonuses, recommended by management
and reviewed by the remuneration committee, are payable to
employees in Hong Kong and senior management of subsidiaries
based on performance. In addition, the Directors may invite
employees, including executive Directors (in which case approval
of independent non-executive Directors is required), of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and associates to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the
year, a total of 38,500,000 share options were granted to certain

Directors or employees on 27 May 2011.
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The State government of Mainland China strives to maintain a
steady growth in the country’s Gross Domestic Product and to
ensure a soft landing of its economy, while keeping inflation under

control.

The State policies to sustain domestic demand and the
likelihood of softening credit control are expected to fuel fixed
asset investment. The graduate implementation of affordable
housing development, which had been lagged behind schedule
in the previous year, and the escalated progress of urbanization
and infrastructure investment will continue to support the

consumption of cement in 2012.

However, according to various statistics, the growth in cement
capacity will outpace the increase in demand during 2012.
Without stringent regulation of supply among key players and
further consolidation of cement operations, the imbalanced
market situation would inevitably add pressure to cement selling

prices.

It is generally expected that cement ASP would remain soft in
the first quarter of 2012, and gradually stabilize in the second
quarter, with further improvement in the second half of the year,

given the arrival of the traditional peak season.

Under the direction of the “Twelfth Five-Year Development
Plan for the Cement Industry”, the sector needs to expedite its
structural reform aiming at enhancing efficiency and improving
environmental protection. Mainland China’s cement industry has,
in recent years, been undergoing a process of capping overall
supply through elimination of obsolete facilities and consolidation
of existing operations into large cement conglomerates via

merger and acquisition.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In accordance with the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, cement
manufacturers are expected to strengthen their research and
development to apply advanced technology for reducing
discharge and better utilisation of energy and resources. On the
other hand, the industry is encouraged to step up its contribution
to environment, via the treatment of urban waste during the

cement production process.

In light of the State policy of promoting further concentration of
capacity under major players in the cement industry, the Group
has been maintaining its momentum of expansion in scale of

operation.

The Group has, over the years, established a multi-regional
operation portfolio that covers nine provinces and one
municipality. Certain of the Group’s newly completed/acquired
production lines are going to book their first full year results
into the Group’s consolidated accounts in the current financial
year, and will thus further reinforce the Group’s income base.
To keep pace of its development, the Group has completed the
acquisition of controlling interests in six cement plants spreading
over Guizhou and Sichuan provinces in January 2012.

On the front of organic growth, the Group has entered into
an agreement with the local government for the development
of a large scale cement production base at Shaoguan city in
the northern part of Guangdong province. The plan, which is
subject to relevant authority approval, is aimed to complement
the Group’s existing facilities in Guangdong and thus further

consolidate its dominant position in the province.

To achieve vertical integration, the Group announced the
acquisition of three companies providing limestone quarrying
service to its subsidiaries in Yingde, Guigang and Jurong
respectively. The transaction allows the Group to lower raw

material costs through extending its operation to limestone

quarrying.
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS
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The Group will continue to intensify its market penetration
by fully utilising its existing production bases and leveraging
additional capacity from newly acquired facilities to improve
its market dominance on a broader geographical portfolio. To
sharpen its edge, the Group strives to commit resources in
enhancing operation efficiency and energy saving to lower costs.
Strengthened coordination among the Group’s various plants
across the country will allow it to achieve further synergetic
effects over its broadened operations. The Group is also actively
exploring opportunities to join hand with local government in the
establishment of cement plants that can help consuming urban

waste.

In an industry with accelerated concentration under the auspices
of the State government, the Group needs to maintain its pace
of expansion, both horizontally and vertically, to consolidate
its forefront position among top-tier cement manufacturers in
Mainland China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Koo, aged 57, is the Chairman and an executive Director.
Mr. Koo is responsible for the overall policy and direction
of the Group. He became a director of Hong Kong Cement
Manufacturing Company Limited (which carried on the Group’s
cement business in Hong Kong prior to the Group’s re-
organisation in September 1997) in July 1991. He is also the
vice-chairman of Quon Hing Concrete Company Limited (“Quon
Hing”) and director of Hong Kong Concrete Company Limited
(*Hong Kong Concrete”), both being associated companies of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
the University of Washington and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, USA. He is currently the Chairman and president
of T’Cement, the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Mr. Koo also serves as the Chairman of China Synthetic
Rubber Corporation, Chairman of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation, a director of China Steel Chemical Co., Ltd., a
director of CTCI Corporation, the Chairman of Synpac (N.C.)
Limited, USA and the Chairman of Continental Carbon Company,
USA. T'Cement, China Synthetic Rubber Corporation, Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corporation, CTCI Corporation and China
Steel Chemical Co., Ltd. are companies listed on the Taiwan

Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Mr. Wu, aged 57, is the Managing Director and executive
Director, the deputy managing director of Hong Kong Concrete
and a director of Quon Hing and Yargoon Company Limited.
He joined the Group in November 1993. Mr. Wu is responsible
for the overall management, strategic planning and business
development for the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from National Cheng Chi University,
Taiwan and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, USA. He has

more than 30 years of experience in cement-related businesses.
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. Shan Weijian

Dr. Shan, aged 58, chairman and chief executive officer of
PAG, an investment firm. He is also a director of a number of
companies including T'Cement, Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited and Taishin Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a senior partner of TPG, co-managing
partner of Newbridge Capital, managing director of J.P. Morgan,
an assistant professor at the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania and an investment officer at the World Bank in
Washington DC. Dr. Shan graduated from the Beijing Institute
of Foreign Trade with a major in English in 1979. He obtained
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in 1981, and received a Masters of Arts
in Economics and a PhD Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California at Berkeley in 1984 and 1987

respectively.

Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson

Mr. Chang, aged 59, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Leslie who is the Chairman and an executive Director. Mr.
Nelson Chang is also the uncle of two non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason and Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth.
Mr. Nelson Chang graduated from New York University with a
Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Nelson Chang is
a director of T"Cement and a director and chairman of Chia Hsin
Cement and CHPL. In addition, Mr. Nelson Chang is directors
of China Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan Prosperity
Chemical Corporation. T'Cement, Chia Hsin Cement, China
Synthetic Rubber Corporation and Taiwan Prosperity Chemical

Corporation are companies listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason

Mr. Chang, aged 40, is the nephew of Mr. Chang, An-Ping,
Nelson, a non-executive Director and the cousin of Ms. Wang,
Lishin, Elizabeth, also a non-executive Director. Mr. Jason Chang
graduated from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
Boston, U.S.A. with a Master Degree in Management of
Technology. He also holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts from Carroll
College, Helena, U.S.A. Mr. Jason Chang is a director of Chia

Hsin Cement, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

Ms. Wang, aged 38, is the niece of Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson,
a non-executive Director and the cousin of Mr. Chang, Kang-
Lung, Jason, also a non-executive Director. Ms. Wang graduated
from the Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan with a Master Degree
in Organization Restructuring. She also holds a Bachelor Degree
of Science in Finance from Boston College, Boston, U.S.A. Ms.
Wang is a director of Chia Hsin Cement, a company listed on the

Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald C.B.E., J.P.

Dr. Liao, aged 82, has been an independent non-executive
Director since August 1997. He was educated at The University
of Hong Kong and the University of Durham, the United Kingdom.
He received a degree of Doctor of Science from the University
of Durham, the United Kingdom, in 2011. He is a senior advisor
to Mitsui & Co (HK) Limited. He retired from the Hong Kong
civil service in 1989 and was the former Secretary for District
Administration and the Secretary for Home Affairs. He served
as a non-executive director for The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and The HSBC China Fund Limited.
He has served on the Council of the Stock Exchange between
1991 and 1995. Dr. Liao was also appointed as an Official
Member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council in 1980 and of the
Hong Kong Executive Council in 1985.
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Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Dr. Chih, aged 57, has been a Chief Architect Global Purchasing
and Supply Chain of General Motors Corporation (“GM”) in
Detroit US from 2007 to 2009. Before joining GM in 2007, Dr.
Chih was the director and Chief Information Officer of Orient
Overseas Container Line Ltd., a subsidiary of Orient Overseas
(International) Limited (“OOCL”) which is a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He also served as executive
committee member of the board of OOCL and was globally
responsible for IT strategy, information systems development,
information technology infrastructure, business process and
ISO9000 facilitation. Dr. Chih also served as director of several
OOCL subsidiary companies such as Cargo Smart Limited and
IRIS Systems Limited. Before joining OOCL in 1993, Dr. Chih was
the Senior Principal at American Airlines Decision Technologies.
Dr. Chih also had extensive consulting experience in the US
railroad transportation industry. Dr. Chih received an M.A. and a
Ph.D. from Princeton University, an M.S. from the University of

Texas at Austin and a B.S. from National Taiwan University.

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Mr. Shieh, aged 54, started his career with Ogilvy & Mather
Advertising Taiwan since 1982. In 1999, he became managing
director of Enterprise 1G, a consultancy company and a
subsidiary of one of the world’s largest communications groups,
WPP Group plc. In 2001, Mr. Shieh was relocated to Shanghai
to set up Enterprise IG China and further develop its business
and operations in the Greater China Region. He retired from WPP
Group plc in 2005. Mr. Shieh has over 20 years of experience
in advertising, public relations, corporate image and identity

management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen, Chen-Yuan

President of TCC Yingde Cement Co., Ltd and President of
Jurong TCC Cement Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen, aged 47, holds a Bachelor Degree in the Department
of Engineering from Feng Chia University in Taiwan, and joined
T'Cement in 1992. He has more than 20 years of experience in

cement-related engineering. He joined the Group in April 2007.

Mr. Huang, Yi-Meng

President of TCC (Guigang) Cement Ltd.

Mr. Huang, aged 44, holds an Associate Degree in Electrical
Engineering from National Taipei Institute of Technology in
Taiwan, and joined T'Cement in 1991. He has over 20 years of
experience in electrical and automation engineering businesses
in cement industry. Between 2002 and April 2008, he had
joined the Group as a leader of electrical sect in construction
department in TCC Yingde Cement Co., Ltd and TCC Fuzhou
Cement Co., Ltd. and was responsible for electrical and
automation related fields during plants construction phase. He
serviced in TCC (DongGuan) Cement Company Limited since
November 2009. Mr. Huang then joined TCC (Guigang) Cement
Ltd. as a leader of electrical department in September 2010 and

was appointed as President of the plant in July 2011.

Mr. Lin, Miin-Shyong

President of TCC Fuzhou Cement Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lin, aged 40, was graduated from the Mechanical
Engineering department of Hwa Hsia Institute of Technology in
Taiwan, and joined Koos Group in 1997. He has more than 10
years of relevant experience in marketing and management. He
joined the Group in October 2009.

Mr. Chiu, Yu-Wen

President of Anhui King Bridge Cement Ltd

Mr. Chiu, aged 37, graduated in Chemical Engineering from Ta
Hwa College of Technology and Commerce, and joined T'Cement
in 2000. He has more than 10 years of relevant experience in

cement manufacturing. He joined the Group in April 2007.

3w AR B £ R

BREERE
R 35 R 55
BIE () KEBIRA AREER 5 EK

FEBRA G
BRAEERFATR HEALEERAEIZE L
B BER— NN ZF AT Cement * % B i
“HEKERBIELR BN _TTLFN
AMARER-

EHxILE

B (BE)KEFRA a5 E
BEEBRFUR FEREALITEERZE
REBENERBEEF-FR—NAA—FMA
T'Cement  E/KEXZERRBEEBKFTE
BEEO _TFKH MR -_TTE_FE-TT
NEDAMAREER - HEEEER (RE)K
‘fbﬁﬁﬁ@i&?@‘l‘\‘*5)@7J<5)Téﬁliﬁ/ Rl ZER R
EBHETE AEZBEREAREIER
TE-BRZZBTZNF+—AMAAR (Rx)
KEERAG  RZE—ZEFNLAMAGE (&
B)KEBRARETERER —T——F+
AT Z AR AE 38 -

MR E
FME TEKTEH IR 2 7] 44X 22

MELERFA05 RERNEBERMBHEMEM T
BE FER-ANAEFENMAMELER #AS
TEMSHEREEEBELR RN _FFN
FTHAMAREHR-

EBEE X Sk 4

LRARIBKEEIR L a8 E

AR EITHR AETRERER(CIRE
(- FRZZZZTFMAT Cement FEKJe R
ERERER TEHEBLR BN _TZ+F
mmAMARER-

£ U I R AR A R ]
2011 44

39



40

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A R A P R

Mr. Wu, Chih-Feng

President of TCC Liuzhou Construction Materials Company
Limited

Mr. Wu, aged 53, graduated in Marine Engineering from National
Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Wu has joined T'Cement since
1988. He has acquired practical experience through holding
various posts responsible for plant construction planning,
product dispatching management, storage and transportation
management, standardized plant operation and advanced plant

management. He joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Chen, Yin-Hua

President of TCC (DongGuan) Cement Company Limited

Mr. Chen, aged 45, holds a College Degree in the Department
of Mechanical Engineering from National Taipei Institute of
Technology, and joined T’Cement in 1992. He has more than
19 years of relevant engineering experience in cement plant. He
joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Wu Jianping

President of Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement Co, Ltd

Mr. Wu, aged 46, graduated from Shanghai Tongji University and
joined a large-scale cement group since 1988. He is now the
chairman and president of several cement companies in the PRC.
Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in the production,
operation and management of the cement industry. He joined the
Group in April 2010.

Mr. Wu Likang

President of TCC New (Hangzhou) Management Company
Limited

Mr. Wu, aged 45, graduated in Silicate from Wuhan Industrial
University. Mr. Wu is a senior cement expert of China’s cement
industry. He has held senior management positions in a large-
scale cement group in the PRC. He has more than 20 years of
experience in corporate strategic planning, plant design and
planning, engineering construction, cement manufacturing and

operational management. He joined the Group in April 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Mulin

Executive Vice President of TCC New (Hangzhou)
Management Company Limited

Mr. Zhang, aged 44, graduated in Business Administration from
Wuhan Institute of Urban Construction. Mr. Zhang has held senior
management positions in a large-scale cement group in the PRC.
He has more than 20 years of experience in human resources
management, corporate management, cement manufacturing
and production operation. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. Wang Tianli

President of TCC Liaoning Cement Company Limited

Mr. Wang, aged 39, was graduated in Cement Technology from
the School of Materials of Changchun University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Wang has held senior management
positions in a large-scale cement company in the PRC. He has
more than 10 years of experience in business management,
cement manufacturing, production operation and engineering
construction. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. An Xinguo

Executive Vice President of TCC Chongqing Cement
Company Limited

Mr. An, aged 32, graduated from the Institute of Materials
Science and Engineering of Taiyuan University of Technology
and specialized in Inorganic Non-metallic Materials. Mr. An has
extensive technical expertise in cement industry and has held
management positions in a large-scale cement group in the PRC.
He has more than 10 years of experience in cement technology,
production management, operation management. He joined the
Group in April 2010.

Mr. Qiao Shengtao

Executive Vice President of Guangan Changxing Cement Co.,
Ltd

Mr. Qiao, aged 30, graduated from Luoyang Institute of Science
and Technology and specialized in Silicate Process Technology.
He has held technical and management positions in a large-
scale cement group in the PRC and has high theoretical level and
strong practical experience in cement production process and
operation management. He joined the Group in April 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A R A P R

Mr. Ni Xianglai

President of TCC Anshun Cement Company Limited

Mr. Ni, aged 48, graduated from Sichuan Jiangyou Building
Materials School and specialized in Cement Process Technology,
and from Anhui Province TV University (% #(%& & A ) and
specialized in Industrial Enterprise Management successively,
and studied in MBA classes of Hefei University of Technology
and Shanxi Building Industry University. Mr. Ni has held senior
management positions in a large-scale cement group in the
PRC and has more than 20 years of experience in cement
manufacturing and operation management. He joined the Group
in October 2011.

Mr. Wang Bing

President of Guizhou Kaili Rui An Jian Cai Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang, aged 43, graduated from Ningguo Radio and
TV University specialized in Law. Mr. Wang has held senior
management positions in large-scale cement group in the PRC.
He has more than 20 years of experience in corporate planning,
engineering construction, cement manufacturing and operation
management. He joined the Group in April 2010.

Mr. Luo Jiannong

President of Guizhou Kong On Cement Company Limited

Mr. Luo, aged 35, graduated from Nanjing Audit University
specialized in Accounting. Mr. Luo has worked in financial,
statistics, production and sales management disciplines and
has advanced cement enterprise operation and management
concepts and solid professional management knowledge. He
took the position of the President of the Company in May 2011.

Mr. Cheung Chi Wah, Patrick

Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group

Mr. Cheung, aged 41, joined the Group in September 2010
and is mainly responsible for the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial matters of the Group.
He holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master Degree in Information
Technology Management from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
at a leading international accounting firm for about 5 years and
had served senior management position in a listed company for
over 10 years. He has over 15 years of professional experience
in corporate finance, financial management, accounting and
auditing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange throughout the accounting year ended
31 December 2011, save for the exceptions that the Company
has not fixed the terms of appointment for the non-executive
Directors which deviates from the provision of A.4.1 of the CG
Code. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provision to the Company’s Articles of
Association, and their appointment will be reviewed when they
are due for re-election. As such, in the opinion of the Directors,
the principle of CG Code A.4 that all Directors should be subject

to re-election at regular intervals has been up held.

CODES OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Model Code,
including the Directors, any employee of the Company, or a
director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company who, because of such office or employment, are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company or its securities. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, the Board comprised two executive and seven
non-executive Directors of whom three are independent as
defined by the Stock Exchange. The number of independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors
represents 33% and 44% of the Board respectively. To enhance
independence and accountability, the role and responsibility
of the Group Chairman, Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie and the
Group Managing Director, Mr. Wu Yih Chin, is separated (the
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 35 to
38).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company had three independent non-executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. One of the
three independent non-executive Directors have the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Articles, all Directors appointed to fill a
causal vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment. At every annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by

rotation.
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The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication at least four times every year. The Board
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses and
development, formulating long term strategies and policies.
The Board also monitors and controls operating and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. All
Directors and Board committees have recourse to external legal
counsel and other professionals for independent advice at the
Group’s expense if they require it. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group’s

businesses to management.

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, three Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (established on 22
March 2012), were established to oversee particular aspects of

the Group's affairs.

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board
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meetings and the two Committees meetings during the year are Zﬁjfzrﬁ \%%@E’\\\T?ﬁ
set out in the table below:
Meetings Attended/Held
HEBITER
Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

EEE BEREEE yMzEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie ER AR EE 8/8 N/A 7 i A3 1/1
Mr. Wu Yih Chin REWSESE 8/8 2/2* 1/1
Non-executive Directors EBITES
Dr. Shan Weijian BREEELT 5/8 N/A i A N/A 8 F
Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson REFHEE 6/8 N/A 73 N/A 7
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason o Wl 4 5% A 7/8 2/2* N/A i A
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth Tyt 8/8 2/2 N/A i@ A
Independent non-executive Directors B EHITES
Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald BAREE L 5/8 1/2 0/
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth MERE LT 8/8 2/2 11
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger HrEmEAE 7/8 2/2 11

*

The Director is not a member of the committee at the relevant time

but attended the meetings by invitation.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles of the Company, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The nomination should be taken into consideration of the
nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to the

Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and its members
comprise three independent non-executive Directors and a non-

executive Director:

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

(Chairman of the Committee)

All members possess diversified industry experiences and
appropriate professional qualifications as required under the

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. Their
major duties and responsibilities are set out in the terms of
reference and the work conducted by the Audit Committee

included the following matters:

1. Reviewed the Group’s 2010 annual and 2011 interim
reports, internal controls and corporate governance issues,
financial and accounting policies and practices and made

recommendations to the Board;

2. Recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and to develop policy
on the engagement of an external auditor to supply non-

audit services;
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3. Discussed with the external auditor their independence and

the nature and scope of the audit; and

4. Discussed with the external auditor any material queries
raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response.

The Committee reviewed the Group’s internal control based
on the information obtained from the external auditor and
Company’s management and was of the opinion that there are

adequate internal controls in place in the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors:

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board the policy for
the remuneration of the executive Directors and other senior

executives as designated by the Board;

2.  To determine the individual remuneration package of each
executive Director including basic salary, annual bonus plans

and allocation of share options;
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3. To consider and recommend to the Board any payment
or compensation commitment to be made to an executive

Director on termination of his contract;

4. In formulating its policy, the Committee shall give due regard
to the contents of the Listing Rules and shall also consider
market forces and compare between different remuneration
packages paid to directors of other companies of a similar
size in comparable industries. The executive Directors may
attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee when
invited to do so, but not when their own remuneration is

being discussed; and

5. To determine any performance related remuneration

schemes and executive share option schemes.

The Remuneration Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in

order to perform its duties.

In connection with its duties, the Remuneration Committee is
required by the Board to select, set terms of reference for and
appoint remuneration consultants, at the Company’s expense
as the Remuneration Committee deems necessary in order to

perform its duties.

The Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration policy for
the executive Directors and senior management. Specifically,
the Remuneration Committee agrees their service contracts,
salaries, other benefits, including bonuses and other terms and
conditions of employment. It also agrees terms for their cessation

of employment.

One meeting was held in 2011, with the attendance rate of 80%.
No executive Director takes part in any discussion about his own

remuneration.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee was established on 22 March 2012
and its members comprise three independent non-executive

Directors and two executive Directors:

Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Dr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald

Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth

Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1. To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3. To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

4.  To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in
order to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee shall have the authority delegated
by the Board to engage independent professional advisors, at
the Company’s expense, to assist the Nomination Committee in
order to perform its duties.

Member of Nomination Committee can call for a meeting anytime

when it is necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees charged to the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the non-statutory audit services
amounted to HK$2,060,000. The non-statutory audit services
consist of financial due diligence, tax compliance and the interim
review. The cost of statutory audit services provided by external
auditor was HK$5,330,000. The responsibilities of the external
auditor with respect to financial reporting are set out in the

section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 68 to 70.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had issued announcement in respect
of a number of “connected transactions”, details of which have
been included in the Report of the Directors on pages 51 to 67
and the related announcements.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognizes its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate internal control system and reviewing
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The Company
management maintains and monitors the systems of controls on

an ongoing basis.

Based on the assessment made by the Company’s management
and external auditor during its statutory audit, the Audit
Committee satisfied that the internal control system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting
records are maintained. In addition, the Board considered
that the resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
responsible for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, their training and budget are adequate. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational system.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group consist of the import and
distribution of cement in Hong Kong and the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the PRC. Through its associates, the Group is also engaged in
the production and distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong
Kong. There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 71 to 72. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK7.5 cents per ordinary and
preference share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of ordinary shares or the register of
members of preference shares of the Company on 30 May 2012,
estimated to be HK$284,249,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the ordinary share
capital and non-redeemable convertible preference share of the
Company are set out in Note 34 and Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 75.

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserve, including the
share premium and contributed surplus accounts, available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed
in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands, amounted to HK$15,147,188,000. Under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, a company may make distributions
to its members from the share premium and contributed surplus

accounts under certain circumstances.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors:
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Chairman)
WU Yih Chin (Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors:
SHAN Weijian

CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason
WANG, Lishin, Elizabeth

Independent non-executive Directors:
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald

CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth

SHIEH, Jen-Chung, Roger
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent to the

Company.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association, Dr.
Shan Weijian, Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth and Mr. Shieh, Jen-
Chung, Roger shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 35 to 42.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding companies, any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME i R &l

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on BEARAR_ZEZNFRA-T=ZBHENMNZ
23 May 2006 (the “Scheme”), the Company had on 27 May 2011 B &) ([Z5H &) - ARBIR T ——F
granted to certain Directors the rights to subscribe for shares FHAZ+HHEARTFETEEAIRZZT—ZF=
at an exercise price of HK$4.42 per share exercisable during AZ++tREZZ—HOFRAHA=-T+ B (B
the period from 27 February 2012 to 26 May 2014 (both days BEEMAB) BRATEEERROITEEL. 425 T
inclusive). RER M < HER -

A summary of movement of the share options granted to FARTESF BERECEIHENT

Directors during the year is as follows:

Number of share options

BREHA
Granted Exercised Qutstanding
Exercise during during at
Name of Directors Date of grant price Exercise period the year the year 31.12.2011
R-B--F
+=R=+-H
B4 BB TEE  TEH RERFL ERETE K176
HK$ (note)
BT (Krit)
Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 27 May 2011 4.42 27 February 2012 to 10,450,000 - 10,450,000
ERA —2——F 26 May 2014
TAZt++H —E-CF
ZAZTtHZE
—E-mF
BAZ+AH
Wu Yih Chin 27 May 2011 4.42 27 February 2012 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
REN —E——f 26 May 2014
TAZt++H —E-CF
ZAZTtHZE
—E-mF
BAZ+AH
12,450,000 - 12,450,000
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note:

The exercisable period of an option granted under the Scheme
commences on the date falling nine months after the date of
grant of an option and expiring at the close of business on the
day falling immediately prior to the third anniversary of the date
of grant in respect of such option. Special restriction apply to
the exercise period of these options: up to 20% of the share
option held by each Director/employee may be exercised from
27 February 2012, a further 30% from 27 February 2013 and
the entire balance from 27 February 2014 onwards. These
share options will not lapse when the Director leaves the Group
and returns to his original employment with T'Cement; their
termination is determined by reference to the date when the
Director subsequently ceases to be employed by T'Cement.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors, Chief Executive or their

associates had interests in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO as follows:

(i)

Long positions in the Ordinary Shares as at 31
December 2011
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Bt - IRREERRERT I 2 BBIRE 2 TR AR
BRERBRERNEAEBEABREEERT
ZEREBR-RAFT AR —BHARNE
ERE SRR ZEERBEZITERAESERR
H:8E8E EEVTHE T —F-_A-++
HRITEEMS A ZBRERZ20% K_F
—=F A=+t BBATESIE0% B
T—F A+ ARBRIAIITE S AREE -
EHERBESTEREEHEAEE T RE
T'Cementz JR TYEmNL i1 2R3 H 4R EThi%
EEHERT CementRIEFZEZ ABET -

A

p=1113
N

EERTRARNES > BS

R_T——F+A=+—H RBREBEEARFRK
B M EGRIIFEIGEFZELMAT &
FTRERIEBBATRARE R HEEH
EEZ B MR G 2 ST

() A=ZZE——F+=ZA=+—HB REBER
2R

Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued
Capacity and Ordinary Ordinary
Name of Directors nature of interest Shares held Share capital
HEAR BT
EEnA BERBZZHIORNEE FEEERHE TERREAZEDL
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie Directly beneficially owned 56,097,019 1.70%
(note 1)
ESN BEEERESR (Kiat1)
WU Yih Chin Directly beneficially owned 5,650,000 0.17%
RER BEEERER
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason Directly beneficially owned 3,000,000 0.09%
5 il 4@ BEEEREA
64,747,019 1.96%
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EHGHREE
note:

(1) 38,859,000 Ordinary Shares were directly beneficially owned
by Mr. Koo. An additional 17,238,019 Ordinary Shares were
also held by a corporation which is 49.85% beneficially owned

by Mr. Koo.
The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in Note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of

Biat:

0

EEZRNAREBRE 2R D

ERLEEE

m

5 ¥ £38,859,000/% & &
fRoRE ZXEBHHEHL9.85% a2
— AT A FEIMT,238,0190% & @A

B MR M E36A

RRBERER

(i) R=ZBE——F+=ZHA=+—H RHE®EZE

associated corporations as at 31 December 2011 BREOEEBROZHAE
T’Cement T’Cement
Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
FEzRAME SORBEME
Directly Through Through Approximately
beneficially spouse or controlled percentage of
Name of Directors owned  minor children corporation Total shareholding
EBERAN b3 ) HiERE
Esps ERERER AREFX ZEHEE @it BAk
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 46,827,543 91 183,538,052 230,365,686 6.24%
ELeD (note 1) (note 2)
(Hizt1) (Htit2)
WU Yih Chin 101,944 - - 101,944 0.01%
REN
CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson 156,573 3,069,817 7,165,821 10,372,211 0.28%
wEF (note 1) (note 3)
(Htit1) (H1323)
LIAO Poon Huai, Donald 12,616 789,293 - 801,909 0.02%
BEXE (note 1)
(Hrt1)
CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01%
HER
notes: Bt it -

(1) The shares are held by the respective Directors’ spouses as

the registered and beneficial Shareholder.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

N BOASEFZEBERBLRERMR
KA



(2) Koo, Cheng-Yun, Lesile, was interested in companies

controlled by them, which held an aggregate of 183,538,052

shares of T'Cement.

(8) Chang, An-Ping, Nelson, was interested in companies
controlled by him, which held an aggregate of 7,155,821

shares of T'Cement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the
Company has not been notified of any interests or short positions
were held or deemed to be held under Part XV of the SFO by any
Director or Chief Executive of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be recorded in the register referred to therein. Nor any
of the Directors and the Chief Executive (including their spouses
and children under the age of 18) had, as at 31 December 2011,
any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for
the securities and options of the Company and its associated
corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or had exercised any

such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the share option
scheme disclosure in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year, there were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by the Directors; or was the Company, or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in

any other body corporate.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERGgHREE

@ EXARBEEREHZDAAPRER
Em -mMBBARAEXFEAET Cement
183,538,0520% f% 17 °

B) REFRBATZTEI AR HEERER M
BB ARAE H£IF AT Cement 27,155,821
B A% A7 o

B EXPIEBEEN R-B——F+ _A=1+—
B ARRYERMNEARRZEMNES TR
BEIEZBZBEALHAERARRIHEM
BOEE (ERREHMBEGERGEXVER) 2 &
- HERDREFEAREZSLHEGIE
XVEBR AR A B I EmsR A - ﬁ’ﬁ/,ﬁET)““m
7 M ERPIEXVERSET7 K87 BE AR B IF A
AIFE AR B R AT HERER %&Hﬁf
fERBI S 3521& M L ARKIRFT IR R 2 B RE A - 1
—E-—F+-A=+—H EERITHRER
(BREAERBEAMISHE L T MERTEE
REMARBARAREBABEE (EERE
HRHEGRG)) 25 MBI 2 R R
TMERTTREAEI A BARER -

EERBROHES 2ER

BRARIRAR A M5 IR I FE36 < BB AR At EI M R
PARBEZFBIN REEARRREMESS
MEZBZEBIARKNFEF R RERES B

BARRBIBROSESFMGas TEEZTE
ZEREN AR B REEMERAT - R/ RHE
RAIMMBARMELEEIMNLHE REES
ARG R R 2 A FHER

£ U I R AR A R ]
2011 4E#t

57



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE

INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following Shareholders had notified the

Company of the relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company.

(i) Long positions in the Ordinary Shares as at

31 December 2011

BRARREZ ZRR

RZB——F+_A=+—H REARAR
M ERDIFEIBREFZITERRERT
AR THRREMEARRE  BREHREAR
AR EITRAZ AR -

R-ZB-——5+ZA=+t—H REBER
ZHR

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of total issued

Capacity and Ordinary Shares Ordinary

Name of Shareholders nature of interest held Share capital

HERDBEET

EBERRAEHE

REEMH BEEBZZHEORMEE s ERHE ZETH

TCCI Directly beneficially owned 1,861,802,000 56.49%
BEEERER

T'Cement (note 1) Through a controlled corporation 1,861,802,000 56.49%

T'Cement (#1:t1) iR EE

CHPL Directly beneficially owned 521,999,500 15.84%
BEEERER

Chia Hsin Cement (nhote 2) Through a controlled corporation 521,999,500 15.84%

RO (B1at2)

notes:

BB A

(1) T'Cement was interested in the shares of the Company by

virtue of its beneficial ownership of the entire issued share

capital of TCCI.

(2) Chia Hsin Cement was interested in the shares of the

Company held by its subsidiary, CHPL.
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(ii) Long positions in the underlying shares of the New
Convertible Preference Shares of the Company as at
31 December 2011

Name of Shareholders

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RGN E

(i) R=Z=B——F+ZH=Z+—H RELQTF
FUBREERZHBROZEFR

Number of
the underlying
Ordinary Shares

Percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
Ordinary

Share capital

HARAR S BT

FrisiEEs ZERBRANETE

BRER LEREAR ZHEDL
TCCI 494,251,511 15.0%
T'Cement (note 1) 494,251,511 15.0%

T’ Cement (Hf7E1)

note:

(1)  T'Cement is deemed to be interested in the underlying shares
of the New Convertible Preference Shares of the Company

held by TCCl as TCCI is wholly-owned by T'Cement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no other
person had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Hit

(1) TCementA2&HEABTCCIMWEAHER
TCCIFTH B8 2 AR R 3T A S (8 2L B% 2 48

BB (D 2 # s o

BEEEEN R_T——F+_A=+—
H &AM ATRARR ZRMDRBERKRS
FARGIAR MEARBESRBEKHIE
XVEP 2R 35 # 2 #E & AR 7 KRBk P
SRR B AR BIRIEE 5 NS G101 %336
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales revenue. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during

the year.

RELATED PARTIES AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during the year
are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
The transactions included in Note 44 items (i) to (vii) to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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The Directors have reviewed the following continuing connected

transactions under which a conditional waiver from strict

compliance with the continuing connected transaction requirements

as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been obtained:
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EXCHTIRESBERERSEHER
EREHERHCEBRHRR2EBETLE

RGN E

F W

BAIFV4AS BB ERER S ZHE

Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange notes
R EE R AT
¢E FRBRZEELR hriz
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET
Leasing of a site on Tsing Yi Island, mAAR—ERRME AR
Hong Kong, from a fellow subsidiary of HEBRBERE WK
the Company 4,968 4,968 1
Leasing of a site in Tondo, Manila, MADE L REERRAZ
the Philippines, from an associate of —HBERRAHESEE
the Company’s ultimate holding company 5 e iuTondo— 523t 7 1,195 1,195 1
Purchase of cement in Hong Kong fromthe  RIAR Bl Z HEZER R A K
Company’s ultimate holding company and HMBRRERABAKE
its subsidiaries 26,757 176,000 2
Purchase of cement and/or clinker in the MARRZ HEEERD AR
PRC from the Company’s ultimate holding ENBAREFREEA
company and its subsidiaries KR,/ S 7,985 85,000 2
Supply of cement to a substantial AT ERRRENBAF
shareholder and its subsidiaries HEKE - 116,000 2
Purchase of clinker from a subsidiary of a m—F2EMBRRZ
substantial shareholder of a non-wholly —ZFERRZ
owned subsidiary =N YNE 23,147 156,000 2

£ U I R AR A R ]
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Annual cap
under the waiver

granted by the

Amount Stock Exchange notes
R BE R AT
2E FRBRRZFELR hriz
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Receive of transportation and management 7R 7l 2 [ R KB A Rl
services from fellow subsidiaries of EHYREERS
the Company 263,685 405,400 2
Supply of slag powder to a substantial AT ERRRENBAF
shareholder and its subsidiaries HERDH - 19,000 3
Receive of maintenance service of a BAREZRARMERA
computer software system from fellow RESRAERAEERS
subsidiaries of the Company 6,252 8,045 3
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notes:

The basis of the pricing policies for the above continuing connected
transaction is set out in greater details in the prospectus of the

Company dated 23 September 1997.

The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
connected transactions is set out in greater details in circular to the

Shareholders of the Company dated 5 January 2010.

The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
connected transaction is set out in greater details in the
announcement to the Shareholders of the Company dated 16

December 2009.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,

confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have

been approved by the board of Directors and, in their opinion,

were:

(a)

conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

and usual course of business of the Group;

fair and reasonable so far as the Shareholders of the

Company are concerned;

entered into either in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions or, where there are
no such agreements, on terms that are no less favourable
than those available to or from Independent Third Parties;

and

within the annual cap under the waiver granted by the Stock

Exchange.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21
of the Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in
respect of the Company’s loan agreements, which contain
covenants requiring performance obligations of the controlling

Shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a loan agreement and an amendment to loan
agreement dated 30 July 2009 and 30 June 2010, respectively,
between the Company and certain banks relating to a three-year
term loan facility of HK$750,000,000, a loan agreement dated
3 September 2010 between the Company and certain banks
relating to a three-year term loan facility of HK$1,920,000,000,
and a loan agreement dated 14 December 2011 between the
Company and certain banks relating to a five-year term loan
facility of US$550,000,000, a termination event would arise if (i)
T’Cement ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of
the shares in the Company’s capital or (i) the Group fails to meet

the financial covenants stipulated in the loan facility.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 2 December 2011 between
the Company and a bank relating to a two-year loan facility of
HK$128,000,000, and a loan agreement dated 22 June 2011
between the Company and a bank relating to a three-year loan
facility of US$40,000,000, a termination event would arise if (i)
T’'Cement ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of
the shares in the Company’s capital or (i) the Group fails to meet

the financial covenants stipulated in the loan facility.
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Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 19 May 2010 between
the Company and a bank relating to a two-year loan facility of
HK$50,000,000, a termination event would arise if T'Cement
ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares

in the Company’s capital.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 28 April 2011 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility of
HK$40,000,000, a termination event would arise if T'Cement
ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of the shares

in the Company’s capital.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 43 to 50.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Details of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 43 to 50.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the

year ended 31 December 2011.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities for

the past five years is set out on page 188.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
22 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
3 37 A% B

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
TCC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
38 7. % B i o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B8 7 % B i o

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2012

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao 7 2 T B A 3

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z - FE——4F+-H=+—HIFFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-LF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k2 FET T T
REVENUE U 7 6 11,266,196 8,125,854
Cost of sales 55 BK AR (8,377,409) (6,596,337)
Gross profit E A 2,888,787 1,529,517
Investment income "EWA 7 33,750 33,688
Other income, gains and losses Ha A - ez & g5 18 8 291,806 148,790
Selling and distribution expenses  $5%& K& 5 #4552 (437,098) (319,756)
General and administrative — M RITBRAX
expenses (555,117) (342,496)
Finance costs & AR 9 (428,995) (318,028)
1,793,133 731,715
Share of results of associates JE{RE &R R 2 ¥ & 242,352 224,086
Profit before tax BR 50 AT 4 A 10 2,035,485 955,801
Income tax expense Fri5 82 12 (849,552) (116,774)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR Nk A 1,685,933 839,027
Other comprehensive income H b 2w
Exchange differences arising BREREINNEBEEY
on translation to presentation &+ =5
currency 463,628 408,175
Gain on revaluation of property EHERE 1,985 4,758
Income tax relating to revaluation B E (LY Z FREH
of property (238) (795)
Share of other comprehensive FEAGE: & QR 2 Bt
income of associates 2H = 50,473 40,515
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE RNEEEMEE R
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 515,848 452,653
Total comprehensive income AEEE2EB=EREE
for the year 2,201,781 1,291,680
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SR A AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # %

S E A —HLEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k2 FET T T
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{5 2N E % 7 :
Owners of the Company PiN/NETEF =N 1,637,880 784,053
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A 48,053 54,974
1,685,933 839,027
Total comprehensive income FE{G 2= M s 4B RS
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7F =N 2,139,754 1,224,382
Non-controlling interests F 12 % 4 2 62,027 67,298
2,201,781 1,291,680
EARNINGS PER SHARE FRAT 14
- Basic —HK HK49.1 centsi& 1l HK28.4 centsi& Il
- Diluted —EE HK49.1 centsi& 1l HK28.4 cents/& Il

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

% W IR e 3k

W

At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+_-H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —EZF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i aF FEx TAIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB kEE 15 15,864,953 12,816,206
Prepaid lease payments AT FRE FKIE 16 1,745,207 1,599,818
Intangible assets | EE 17 2,647,565 2,648,561
Mining rights PR HE 19 406,633 398,562
Interests in associates Bk & A A 20 1,456,066 1,414,776
Loan to an associate Bt AR E K 20 - 2,200
Long term deposits KHES® 828 720
Loan receivables R E R 21 87,147 109,740
Deposits paid for the acquisition BT E  HE Kk
of property, plant and RN EMEE
equipment and other assets T ZE] & 578,050 712,127
Deposits paid for acquisition BB T B A 7
of subsidiaries Szl & 720,666 =
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 22 57,501 59,772
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE = 23 879 1,275
Pledged bank deposits BB EITER 24 3,970 2,360
23,569,465 19,766,117
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 1,491,855 895,105
Prepaid lease payments TS ERE 16 46,724 40,695
Prepayments, deposits and ENFIE e R
other receivables H b fE W 5K 26 1,695,361 813,508
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 27 2,205,998 1,811,954
Tax recoverables A] Uy [2] 7 18 9,579 77
Held-for-trading investments BIEXSGRB KA 22 84,886 327,100
Pledged bank deposits BEBEITER 24 130,378 27,094
Time deposits 7E Bi 17 3k 24 12,300 24,780
Cash and bank balances R MIRITAEEH 24 3,620,077 3,323,082
9,297,158 7,263,395
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables RN E 5 R 28 1,651,931 1,623,329
Other payables and accrued ot JE T 5RIE K
liabilities EEtBE 1,243,277 892,360
Tax payables eSS R IR 102,547 47,064
Bank loans IRITE R 29 5,309,017 3,529,456
Amount due to a non-controlling J& 15 — L FE 5 A%
shareholder % 3R FRIE 30 74,093 93,785
Senior notes BREEE 31 - 139,396
8,380,865 6,325,390
Net current assets REBEEFE 916,293 938,005
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREEE 24,485,758 20,704,122
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& S B 5IR D %

At 31 December 2011 R-ZFE——#+_-H=+—H

2011 2010
—F——F —TFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i aF FEx &t
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Bank loans RITER 29 7,878,716 8,489,568
Amount due to immediate S B BIER A R 5B
holding company 32 933,600 932,400
Long term payable = B FE S 5K I8 17,491 9,133
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 23 358,144 364,091
9,187,951 9,795,192
15,297,807 10,908,930
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital — ordinary shares A& AR — 3 A 34 329,564 329,563
Share capital — non-redeemable A& AR — A7) fE B
convertible preference shares A 82 $R 48 ST Y 35 49,434 =
Reserves i 14,563,955 10,282,817
Equity attributable to owners of ZAATHEE AELER
the Company 14,942,953 10,612,380
Non-controlling interests IR E R 354,854 296,550
15,297,807 10,908,930

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 187 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on
22 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

KOO, CHENG-YUN, LESLIE

BRI
CHAIRMAN
FE

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
OB g

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z2-F——4F+=H=+—HI FZE

76

2011 2010
—B-—-F —T-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KgEEH 2 HER=E
Profit before tax B 75 B e 2,035,485 955,801
Adjustments for: KA FE -
Interest expenses MERX 428,995 318,028
Interest income FE WA (19,338) (19,074)
Compensation received B U W BB R R (e
for the termination of
an acquisition agreement (60,000) -
Dividend income from investments TERB WA (14,412) (14,614)
Depreciation of property, Y BB REETE
plant and equipment 796,285 606,971
Amortisation of prepaid lease TN E RIB
payments 45,061 35,184
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 21,229 15,064
Amortisation of mining rights BT e 4 5 22,430 15,055
Equity settled share-based LARR 7 4 & DABR 19
payment expenses THAX 15,975 —
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BEK
plant and equipment B E 1,393 1,376
Share of results of associates JEAGE & AR 2 4B (242,352) (224,086)
Bargain purchase gain arising on WERBAREEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries AR 33 (4,298) -
Exchange adjustments PE A& (24,807) 2,362
Operating cash flows before EEESEEA 2
movements in working capital KEIRSRE 3,001,646 1,692,067
Increase in long term deposits K Bt & 180 (108) -
Increase in inventories FEE N (543,772) (142,500)
Increase in prepayments, FENFIE EZE Rk
deposits and other receivables H b W SR I8 38 N (311,058) (279,139)
Increase in trade receivables FE U E 5 BR Z 38 N (380,334) (761,038)
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading 3 1ERX 5 H ik 2 K& H D
investments () 242,214 (59,157)
Increase in trade payables FE 2 5 BR K12 10 2,508 620,775
Increase (decrease) in other payables b f& {5 8 &
and accrued liabilities FEsTE & m ORd) 286,520 (310,717)
Cash generated from operations KESIR e 2,297,616 760,291
Income taxes paid B ATEE (305,299) (103,679)
Withholding tax paid on dividends BEUCHER B & A B RR BT 2
received from associates FEHIF (8,683) -
Net cash generated from operating KETEBRGE 2R & FHE
activities 1,983,634 656,612

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE=F——F+=A=+—HUFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B i FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities KBRS HERE
Interest received B U F| B 19,338 19,074
Compensation received B AR 1 U S s B (B
for the termination of
an acquisition agreement 60,000 -
Dividend received from associates B AR IR E 118,831 54,111
Dividend received from listed equity Bl ETRAEER S
investments 14,412 14,614
Purchase of property, BEME BELFEE
plant and equipment (2,249,939) (1,849,507)
Increase in prepaid lease payments TE 78 & FRIF G AN (179,241) (50,887)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEAE (1,159) (676)
Purchase of mining rights BB R (5,564) (67,495)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEM&E
plant and equipment ZFT1S 338 689 322
Proceeds from disposal of HEEFEEZMERE
intangible assets 2 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEHB AR ZEMEI&
subsidiaries (720,666) =
Repayment of advance to an associate — BB & A A& & 2N 2,200 12,200
Advance to loan receivables 23 W E K (340,128) (41,400)
Repayment of loan receivables EERWER 19,180 12,336
Repayment of advance to non- FE 2 AR IR R BB EA K
controlling shareholders - 16,179
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IR 1T 7 5L 10 (96,537) (12,505)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B IRITE R 1,236 24,437
Decrease in time deposits E HR 17 ROR 12,480 60,357
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WHENBARZE S
subsidiaries igaepe | 33 (252,078) (2,842,868)
Net cash used in investing activities REEEFTAREFHE (8,596,944) (4,651,708)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HOaBlenER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 =% ——

FHA=+—AILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt iF FHERT FE T
Cash flows from financing activities BmEFHCBEEMNE
Interest paid B F B (479,529) (377,716)
New bank loans raised HIBIRITE K 8,176,089 9,960,538
Repayment of bank loans BEERITERK (7,415,170) (6,168,105)
Purchase of senior notes BEELERE - (566,932)
Redemption of senior notes JERE L EE (139,396) (94,704)
Repayment to non-controlling ) FE 28 % AR 548 3K
shareholders (19,692) (14,360)
Repayment of loan payables to B EMNGIEI S R
former shareholders of subsidiaries HEXR (387,388) -
Advance from immediate holding BEERRARIER
company 1,223 526,900
Proceeds from issue of BT BB LR
convertible preference shares/ LBAR AT 15 5E
ordinary shares 2,422,290 3,153,616
Payment for transaction costs TR ERELR
attributable to issue of convertible TBARE (L 2 R B AR
preference shares/ordinary shares (3,643) (42,292)
Proceeds from exercise of TR RERMS A
share options - 380
Dividends paid to owners of BERARRHEE ARE
the Company (240,581) (43,942)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B AT IEE AR AR R AR B
shareholders (43,811) (23,991)
Net cash generated from financing BEEEMEREFE
activities 1,870,392 6,309,392
Net increase in cash and cash FRNHEEEEEFE
equivalents for the year HNFE =R 257,082 2,314,296
Cash and cash equivalents FMzRekBReEE
at beginning of year 3,323,082 968,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes %I [ R & &) » 5 £ 39,913 40,175
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEBEGERBEEEEH
at end of year, represented by BNIR & MIR1T &S &
Cash and bank balances 3,620,077 3,323,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZ-F——F+=-A=+—HILFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) consisted of the import and distribution of
cement in Hong Kong and the manufacture and distribution
of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Through its
associates, the Group is also engaged in the production and
distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information and Key Dates” section to the Annual Report.

The parent company of the Company is TCC International
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Cement Corporation). In
the opinion of the Directors, Taiwan Cement Corporation,
a company incorporated and whose shares are listed in

Taiwan, is the Company’s ultimate holding company.

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries and associates is Renminbi (“RMB”). However,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars as the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider this presentation is more

useful for its current and potential investors.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related Party Disclosures

2009)
HK(IFRIC*) — INT 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity

Instruments

*

IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The application of the above new or revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the consolidated

financial statements.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 755 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z2-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7

and HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets’

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Financial Instruments?®

Consolidated Financial
Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?
Fair Value Measurements?

Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Income?
Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets®
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial
Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilites®

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine?
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” issued in 2009 introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” amended
in 2010 includes requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates
to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will have impact on classification and measurement
of available-for-sale investments reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets but not on the Group’s financial

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 T 5 A A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EAFMITREETESBMKER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING TR ((EBHBREEL])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#)

New and revised HKFRSs on consolidation, joint GRS AETH HMEQARARKECH
arrangements, associates and disclosures I RBIERT BB EREER

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, RZE——F A BlEKFe a&%Hk.
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, gEENR TR AITEERES EM -
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as BREBEVBRELERFI0% FBHB
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HEAFEI5 BBV BRELERZFE12

5 BAGRERETR (R_F——FK
BRT) REB G ERIE28R (R_F——
FRIERT) °

Key requirements of these five standards are described ZERBEANZEEHEHRART
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated BBV R EEAFI0FMREB S E
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with AlE275%: (=& kBRI S BH®RE | NE#E
consolidated financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 HRERBBRRZBIREB (BERER
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 Bg) REBF12R K- FKRENE
includes a new definition of control that contains three Bl - BEBMBmMEERNFE109 A A I
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, ZHER AP BE=ZFEITE: (@EKE
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, HEHED: B2 EKEHRLEMNSG
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect TEE 2 Bk R & (c)se 478 A ¥
the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has KREHRZENANZEREERRESTE
been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios. BBV BEREEAFI0REREHBRLLZ

BRI JTEMAFAIES| -

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable BV BRELELF125 A5 —BHIFEE

to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint Bl - @ARRHERAR A& L HE B

arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured RAIR /IR GEEEEBREERRZE

entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 BEoEEME BB EMELERFE 129

are more extensive than those in the current standards. HoBRBEREBRBRTEAMREEERS
& o

These five standards are effective for annual periods ZERBERER =T —=F—HA—H%

beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application ERARz FEBEES WAlieRERA -
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are MEERIRIREEA -

applied early at the same time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)
The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The
application of these five standards may have impact on
amounts reported or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors have not yet performed a detailed
analysis of the impact of the application of these Standards

and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. HKFRS 13 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all

assets and liabilities within its scope.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of
HKFRS 13 may result in more extensive disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be

allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting

periods.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

financial performance and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# o B 2% e B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the principal

accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by other members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For 7 B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFFHHE (&)

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”,

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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B F——F A=+ —AIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation is initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of

the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does

not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented as an intangible asset.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is

not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
or at fair value in the case of acquisition of associates as
part of a business combination, and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included

within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal

of the associate.

In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

when it loses significant influence over that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& B U 85 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements

only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the

goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all

the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated

with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease

is classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency, i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates,
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or

loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that year, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (exchange fluctuation

reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange

fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for the intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
employee’s pension schemes of the respective municipal
government in various places in the PRC where the Group
operates are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Where current and deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting of a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounts for business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and office buildings held for use in the
production or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that would
be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting

period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the land and building revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to the profit or loss to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the land and building
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
land and building revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (other than leasehold land
and office building and construction in progress) are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,

using straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised of their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful

lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss when the assets is

derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, directs labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B 2% e B i

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments and for those financial assets designated at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in investment

income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Held for trading investments are measured at fair value,
which changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial

assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivables, loan to an associate, amount due from an
associate, time deposits, cash and bank balances and
pledged bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the

reporting period subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 — 180 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When trade receivables and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of comprehensive income
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
bank loans, senior notes, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder, amount due to immediate holding company and
long term payable are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase
of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of

the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares in which the
Group has no contractual obligation to redeem and will be
only settled by the exchange of fixed number of the Group’s

own equity instruments is classified as equity instruments.

The balance will be transferred to share capital and share
premium once preference shares are converted. Any excess
of par value of issued ordinary shares will be transferred to

share premium.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For 7 B 5 R A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

FESHE (#£)

ERMITA(Z)

EHEERKRIEr (&)

7~ RJ BB o] F] #314 (B 5 R
AEBITEANEFER T HEB BRI
BEHE A AEEESRATALEZT
AR TR EERSERRATA-

\+

—EBBELAR fRESERERARK
inE-BACRTERREEBEZHBO K
BERMDEE -

AU TERR

AEEEEREECRERESOEINE
MR RECREECEENANSRE
F%*ﬁ‘%fﬁUZ%@ﬁﬁMﬁﬂﬁﬁ&@%&Eﬁiﬁ%

—Ef MEREE/BRK LER-

PEHKUIBERCREER EEKRMER
B EEKRERN ZEEZERE R HA
PHKRSER LSS R Z R KRR
B NI ER -

AEBEREETEHER JEHEIER
Khe %XJJ:EEEZJ%@EE\E"%JJ:EEE’DZEE
HEEERERENRENREBZEE
BN ERER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, management has made
various estimates based on past experience, expectations
of the future and other information. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the cash flow
projection covering a 10-year period based on financial
budgets approved by management and a discount rate
of 9.1% (2010: 7.9%) per annum. Cash flow beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated with zero growth rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2011, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$2,610,153,000 (2010: HK$2,591,704,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other operating segments. Summary details of the

reportable segments are as follows:

() the import, distribution and handling of cement
segment which is the import, distribution and handling

of cement in Hong Kong;

(i) the manufacture and distribution of cement, clinker and
slag powder segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in the
PRC; and

(i) the investment holding segment which invests in listed

and unlisted equity securities.

2EER

AEEZBEXRBGNREBZMEE R&F
EBREZERRRBIEL D BLHER
B - AKERLENELS —RBERKE
{7 - BT 52 R 2E dm Mo AR 765 2 e\ B £ [m] g 35 £
HiZ2 BN BAEM AR -AI2HMO B ZHF
EREMT :

0] DHREENED R (AIREE
iEEI DR EREAKR)

() BERSHKOR BB REEHSE
(EIAA R B B 2 9 847K - Bk BB
BH) R

@iy H‘EERSBE (A ER EWRIELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7 E&ER (©)
Segment revenue and results PEWEREE
The following table presents revenue and results by TREJNZAIERDBE D 2 WE R E
reportable segments. B
Import, Manufacture and
distribution and distribution of cement,
handling of cement clinker and slag powder Investment holding Consolidated
0 28R SER A #HKIR
REKE RAREER REER &8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
=%--f C"%T-%f | Z8-f | _Z2-%f | Z8—-& _"%-%f | 28— _T-%f
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TAL TER TAL TER TAL TER TAL
Segment revenue -liee
Sales to customers HETEF 284,345 232,608 10,981,851 7,893,246 - - 11,266,196 8,125,854
Segment profit AEEF 41,539 31,976 1,918,397 893,835 11,779 45,768 1,971,715 971,679
(37,636) (28,028)

Unallocated central administration costs RAEPRTRAA
Unallocated other income KA

288,049 106,192

2,222,128 1,049,743
Finance costs BERA (428,995) (318,028)
Share of results of associates EEBENG EE 242,352 224,086
Profit before tax BHRH 2,035,485 955,801

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies in Note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(including Directors’ salaries), certain other income, finance
costs and share of results of associates. This is the measure
reported to the executive Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2 BER (»)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEWNERES (F)
There are no inter-segment sales for both years. MEFEHES EREES -
The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of MEFERNAEENEARAEE BN ER
the total revenue of the Group for both years. BA10% A EZ2EF °
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AREBWEERIZAIZROBESPZEE
reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly BBz THE - Ty H I E AR 4
provided to the executive Directors for review. THITESAHER -
Geographical information i B & R
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — K SERAMEEZZHE-—BERPBEL
Hong Kong and the PRC. The following table provides an CNRABEEFPHAEMOMZASE 2
analysis of the Group’s revenue by location of customers, %Zﬁ (Timmm kR 2 REH) -
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services:
Hong Kong The PRC Others Consolidated
B2 At g8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
2 -F "T-3F 8- "“F-FF | Z8—& "-3F [ "% _I-%f
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
TER TAL TER TAL TER TAL TER TEL
Segment revenue PENE
Sales to customers BETEF W35 237005 10981850 7875491 = 13070 11266196 6125854
£V BB A L

2011 4E#t
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

, el BB\ [y
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7 EER &)
Geographical information (Continued) WEER (Z)
Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical RNEBREEMTEWREI S ZIERBEE
location of the assets are detailed below: DHTEAR
Hong Kong The PRC Others Consolidated
£ HE Hih &8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
=¥ - -"T-TF [SR-—H "T-TF (RN -T-TF ISR —EN _T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAL FAR TAL THR THL THRL TAx
Non-current assets FERBEE 56,843 57,536 21,867,152 18,076,343 39,907 42,115 21,963,902 18,175,994
note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, loan to Kat: ERBEETREHE QA HE
an associate, loan receivables, available-for-sale investments, RAER BRER AJHEERE B
deferred tax assets and pledged bank deposits. ERIEEEREEMIBITERK
Other segment information HitpBER
Manufacture and
distribution of
Import, cement,
distribution and clinker and Investment
handling of cement slag powder holding Consolidated
0 2HK HERAHKE
REKE ARREER REZR 4
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
~$--% -%-%f C-%--% -Z-%3Ff =-%--§ <-I-3Ff <c-B--§ C-I-%%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERL FHL TAR TATL TAR TATL TART TATL
Amounts included in the measure of FTEAERFINMEALZ
segment profit: £
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 4,367 4,240 879,620 666,815 1,018 1,219 885,005 672,274
Dividends from listed equity investment AR AR ERS - - - - (4412 (14614 (1442 (14614
Change in fair value of BERZREIRERT
held-for-trading investments BEE - - - = 3,602 (69,157) 3,602 (69,157)
Gain on disposal of HERERS
held-for-trading investments Rz &8 W - - - - (24,171) - (24,171) -
Amounts regularly provided to THRETEE
the chief operating decision maker but BERREBRNTE
not included in the measure of segment 2 ERFIBH A2 L&
profit:
Interest income L ON (254) - (16,155) (10,924) (2,929) (8,150) (19,338) (19,074)
Finance costs BERA 2 2 377,682 267,105 51,311 50,921 428,995 318,028
Share of results of associates ERBENRA £E - - - - (242,352) (224,086) (242,352) (224,086)
Income tax expense HERY 8,077 6383 320302 100211 17,473 1180 349552 116,774
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REVENUE

Revenue represents invoiced amount of sales of cement,

clinker and slag powder, net of trade discounts, returns and

sales related taxes.

»h g

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

6. Wz

Wats BB SN RERBREEDN
‘2K AR RBENHEETA-

INVESTMENT INCOME 7. BEWA
2011 2010
= —T—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAIT
Dividends from listed equity investments TR AE & B & 14,412 14,4l
Interest income F B U A 19,338 11,015
Interest income from senior notes BEAEEEFBRA - 8,059
33,750 33,688

Investment income earned from financial assets, analysed by

category of assets, is as follows:

DHTEAR

ERMEEMBMZRERAREERMZ

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHET

Held-for-trading investments BIEXSRB2&KE 14,412 14,614
Loans and receivables B K% WKIA

(including cash and bank deposits) (BERE RETER) 19,338 19,074

33,750 33,688

£V I PR A A PR )
2011 4E#t
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

PRC local authorities to the Group to encourage investments

in certain specific locations. There is no specific conditions

attached to the grants, the Group recognised the grants upon AL T LARERR

receipts.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Ht A - K= RkEE
2011 2010
—B-—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Bargain purchase gain arising on WENBAREEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) EEWE W (#/:#33) 4,298 =
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BIEXSRE KA
investments REEES) (3,602) 59,157
Compensation received for the termination & Ug 4% |- UG BE #7328
of an acquisition agreement (note a) (Ktita) 60,000 -
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERERXS AR
investments B W= 24171 =

Government grants (note b) WAL (HaEb) 87,025 31,261

Handling charges FEER 2,525 2,515

Management fee income BEEEBIA 1,251 1,181

Net exchange gain P 55 = 83,211 35,587

Rental income HeWA 1,424 1,038

Others H 31,503 18,051

291,806 148,790
notes: Bt it -

(a) During the year, the Group entered into an agreement to (@ FA -AEBIFTY—HHBEAKERS
acquire certain target companies engaged in the cement REKRKEEBZ2ETERERAA KR
business in the PRC. The vendor subsequently terminated the BErkitzm@E YRASE S NEE
agreement and paid compensation of HK$60,000,000 to the 60,000,000/ 7T ©
Group.

(b)  The amount represents the incentive subsidies provided by the (b) ZEeFEETRREMFEBARNSBERE R

B EARBE TREIbR 2E -
70 BB A2 Y 45 1 U R F - AR B R 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

FINANCE COSTS 9. RE KA
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Interest on: AT ZA8
Bank loans wholly repayable AR T BHE2EEERE 2
RITE R
— within five years —HFR 458,017 327,085
— more than five years —HBARF - 1,412
Loan from immediate holding company FEEBIER AR ZE K 10,174 10,787
Senior notes BAERRE 11,338 38,432
Total borrowing costs BIEE A 479,529 377,716
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction & : A& Ti2H & &1k
in progress o) (50,534) (59,688)
428,995 318,028
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FRBRERNME 2 BERAERE —KE

general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying an

average capitalisation rate to expenditure on qualifying

assets.

BE URAAEREERE I THER
(EFIEER

£ VR 12 R4 A R ]
2011 4E#t
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BR% AT &= A
2011 2010
—2——-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHT
Profit before tax has been arrived B 31 A& A B 1 BR
at after charging the following: T3 &8 -
Director’s remuneration (Note 71) BEEMe (Hat11) 9,459 5,586
Other staff cost Hh 8 TRA
Salaries and other benefits FohHMRMN 380,234 210,566
Other pension costs and mandatory H R RE AR K&
provident fund contributions RIE G 30,722 16,637
Equity settled share-based LA RS 7 48 & DA B 19
payment expenses SR X 10,646 =
Total staff costs = RN 431,061 232,789
Depreciation of property, plant and Y HEREETE
equipment (note) (P 5E) 796,285 606,971
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A< 78 & 308 # 5 45,061 35,184
Amortisation of intangible assets (included EFEE#E (Dt AHE
in cost of sales and general and AR R — M AT )
administrative expenses) 21,229 15,064
Amortisation of mining rights (included s (BT AHEK
in cost of sales and general and AE—METHEAX)
administrative expenses) 22,430 15,055
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRAD B 5,330 4170
Operating lease payments in respect of HEMFz2KEHEEHE
rented premises 10,982 7,020
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WERZHEEE
equipment 1,393 1,376

The Group has no forfeited contributions from the retirement

benefit scheme for both years.

note: Depreciation charge of approximately HK$4,547,000

Hiat

(2010: HK$2,598,000) relating to plant and machinery

used in buildings under construction was capitalised under

construction in progress.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are

MNEEZREENS

ExMs
ENSENTRETZMESMT:

as follows:
KOO, CHANG, CHANG, WANG, LIAO CHIH SHIEH,
Cheng-Yun, wu SHAN An-Ping,  Kang-Lung, Lishin, ~ Poon Huai, Ching Kang,  Jen-Chung,
Leslie Yih Chin Weijian Nelson Jason Elizabeth Donald Kenneth Roger Total
Ef A REN BRE FZY RHl Tud BEE HEE B @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TETL TAT TET TEL TET ThT ThL TEL
2011 E-k
Fees ok 220 - 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 1,760
Other emoluments Hn e
Salaries and other benefts HeREMRE - 1,360 - - - - - - - 1,360
Performance related BRABBL
incentive bonus BB 660 350 - - - - - - S 1,010
Equity settled share-based NRAEE SR
payment expenses TRAX 4,473 856 - - - - - - - 5,329
Total emoluments el 5,353 2,566 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 9,459
2010 %%
Fees e 220 = 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 1,760
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits HEREMRE - 1,326 - - - - - - - 1,326
Performance related HRBENZ
incentive bonus BETEA 2,000 500 - - - - - - - 2,500
Total emoluments el 2,220 1,826 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 5,586

The performance related incentive bonus is determined with

reference to the performance of the Group’s operation.

The remunerations of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.

HRIAHN 2 BEEADRIEAEEEE
REMERE °

EEFMOIKRTHERE @2 E/MAREAR
MEBERMETE -

£ VR 12 R4 A R ]
2011 4E#
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ NEZREEME »)

EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included

two (2010: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments

are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three

(2010: three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

BEME
AEAREREFALEERE (ZF—
TE WMB)EF HEFHMCHIR LEX-
HHp=2 (T -ZF : =R )R=aFH AL
ZFEBESIAT -

2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Salaries and other benefits e RHfth )RR 3,354 2,573
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Rk & 51 84 5% 79 58
Performance related incentive bonus B KX IR 68 7 SN AEAL 1,118 1,021
Equity settled share-based VARR 7R 48 & DA IR 9
payment expenses TR X 1,092 =
5,643 3,652
Their emoluments were within the following bands: EHEN T TH&EE:
Number of employee
BEAH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Up to HK$1,000,000 % 11,000,0007 JT - 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T
—2,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T
—3,000,000/% 7T 1 —

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2010: nil). None of the
Directors has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2010: nil).

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. i X H
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH T
Current tax: TS :
Hong Kong BB 8,571 6,452
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A 1 ZEFTAS A 338,735 106,920
Other jurisdictions HAib R AR 5,131 96
Withholding tax TE A 2,096 1,872
354,533 115,340
(Over) under provision in prior years: BAEFEREE (BE) TR :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A1 EFTS A (3,162) 141
Other jurisdictions H A al AR 12 =
Withholding tax TEIIER (866) 1,043
(4,016) 1,184
Deferred tax (Note 23) EERIE (7 7223)
Current year KEE (965) 250
349,552 116,774

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
arising in PRC and other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the enterprise in PRC is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are exempted from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from their
first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the
next three years. The preferential tax exemptions or reduction
are going to be expired starting from year 2011 to 2012.

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to
the preferential tax treatment for Western Development
Policy (“WDP Policy”). The applicable reduced preferential
Enterprise Income Tax rate under the WDP Policy is 15%.

ERNNERIIBBEAREE 2 A EFRH R
MiZ16.5% (ZFE—FF :16.5% ) 2 Tt X
STE B REMEARER 2B IR E
BRI AR ZRITHETE -

BEBHEARAMBEEMRSHE (TR
PIEBE]) REERMBHIZERMRA &
BEXZHER _TTN\F-—H-—HER
25% o

BEFEHBEEERER ARl 2ET
FEMEAR B EEEFNFEREEMSE
MEBMTREPEMGE Mk =F&
BFEER - HEREEIRN_T——F
BEZT—ZF FRHo

ARARZETHBEMEBARARERAIA
FIEEER ([P AFERR]) ZEaHRWE
o 1R IR P B0 R B BRI E
BREMSHER15% °

U B R4 T A PR ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. i8R H (2)
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRZEBRIARX BEE 2 HE WS RN S
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as M2 EHERIAT
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHT
Profit before tax B % Al i A 2,035,485 955,801
Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of ~ LAFR B {b 2 Fi {5 ?RT25%
25% (2010: 25%) (note) T—ZFF :25% )T E
Z B (A7) 508,871 238,950
Tax effect of share of profits of associates & {h B & X &) 5| 2
BiE 2 (60,588) (56,022)
Tax effect of expenses that are not T FE FE SR B g A1) By A AT
deductible in determining taxable profit MMz H2 BT 48,689 21,096
Tax effect of income that are not taxable in 77 & & =% 51 ) A1l B 5 78
determining taxable profit R Z WA 2 BT & (13,951) (15,541)
(Over) underprovision in prior years BEFEEE (BE) TR (4,016) 1,184
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER 2 T EE 2
MBTE 15,625 8,576
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR ARER 2 BIAEE
recognised (39,816) (31,841)
Income tax on concessionary rate REBRERGTEZFER (111,021) (57,477)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E b Gl AR KL L 2 [ B
operating in other jurisdictions RAIPEME 2 E (4,390) (3,066)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings 7% &t 2 | 2 a0 7 10,100 10,944
Others H Aty 49 (29)
Tax expense for the year RNEFHIAX H 349,552 116,774

note: The Group’s major operating subsidiaries are located in the

PRC and accordingly, income tax rate of 25% is adopted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

13. DIVIDEND

The 2011 final dividend of HK7.5 cents (2010: HK4.8
cents) per ordinary and preference share, amounting to
approximately HK$247,173,000 (2010: HK$158,190,000)
and HK$37,076,000 (2010: Nil) has been proposed by
the Directors to be payable to ordinary and preference
shareholders respectively and is subject to approval by the
ordinary shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The 2010 final dividend of HK4.8 cents per share and
2011 interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share totalling
approximately HK$240,581,000 was recognised as
distribution during the year ended 31 December 2011. The
2011 preferred distribution payable to convertible preference
shareholders totalling approximately HK$2,057,000 was
also recognised as distribution during the year ended 31
December 2011.

The 2009 final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share totalling
approximately HK$43,942,000 was recognised as
distribution during the year ended 31 December 2010.

13. R 2

EEEEZED AT BRRE REEREK
REE_ZFT-——FREAREEREBRK
BERTSEW(ZZE—FF:4.8%)

4 /247,173,000 L (ZF —Z F -
158,190,000 7t ) % 37,076,000/ 7T ( =
Z-TF /) HAFTARKRRENERE
BHRBAFAG LR ER HEE-

%

HE_Z——F+_A=1+—HILEFE
AN ARBEHERADER T —FTFRAR
BERA4. /%MJ&_TffiﬂPHﬂHﬁgtﬂx

2.5%1l - & £ 49 5240,581,0007 7T ° FRE]
E_E——F+-A=+T—HIEFER
A &) IR R 20 RO T A 8 4R O AR IR
RA H492,057,0008 T =T ——FEL
A% K ©
REE-_FT—TF+_A=1+—RHILFE

W ZIS’L\\TETJEJJA/)E*? = hixﬁﬂﬁx
%i%ﬂ%ﬂw%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%g@pm%

Bl
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings

B F——F A=+ —AIFE

14. BIREF

THIEHE

ARRHA NEIEBRERRNTHREIA

AUGESREXARBERF AR

per share
2011 2010
—E2-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Profit for the year attributable to owners ZNA BHEH A BIH A EE
of the Company st A 1,637,880 784,053
Number of shares BB E
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
000 ‘000
T & T A%
Weighted average number of ordinary SEERERBFAZ
shares and preference shares in issue BT TR R E R
for the purpose of basic earnings per 19 2
share 3,337,618 2,759,817
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary BEEERE EELTBR S
shares: -2
Share options i i - 103
Weighted average number of ordinary EERESRNAZE
shares and preference shares in issue BT TR R
for the purpose of diluted earnings per B iR DN T 5 &
share 3,337,618 2,759,920

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average

market price of shares for the year ended 31 December

2011.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 U 55 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2011

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ %

BE-LF——F = HA=+—HIFEZF

Cement  Leasehold Furniture,
plant land and fixtures
and office Plant and and office Motor Construction
facilities building ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Lighters in progress Total
B £8
KER HELH BER RBAE
R#EfE REAZEF BE B AE L3 ERIR fay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TibT FHL FiBT FHL FiHT THL FHT THL
COST OR VALUATION A EE
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-%4-A-AH 2,541,616 34,400 5,412,324 497,202 88,539 7,731 1,215,662 9,797,474
Exchange adjustments EHAZE 165,329 - 345,450 23,437 5,622 - 64,657 604,495
Additions NE 577 - 18,341 4,557 12,645 - 1,788,601 1,824,721
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries WM BAREEE 653,014 - 1,047,389 1,068 18,110 - 540,608 2,269,189
Disposals e (607) - (481) (1,273) (2,247) - - (4,608)
Transfers g 861,444 - 1,397,984 8,652 852 - (2,268,932 -
Surplus on revaluation EHBH - 3,600 - - - - - 3,600
At 31 December 2010 § 4,221,373 38,000 8,221,007 533,643 123,521 7,731 1,349,596 14,494,871
Exchange adjustments EXAR 221,819 - 517,976 24,673 15,947 - 42 847 823,262
Additions RE - - 65,699 5711 42,940 - 2,493,899 2,608,249
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEBHBARBES 307,258 = 213,675 1,310 4,364 = 136,279 662,886
Disposals HE (1,102 - (1,221) (490) @2,117) - - (4,930)
Transfers #H 1,184,569 - 1,844,802 11,722 20,145 - (3,061,238) -
Surplus on revaluation EEAR - 1,000 - - - - - 1,000
At 31 December 2011 R=B--F+-A=1-8 5,933,917 39,000 10,861,938 576,569 204,800 7,731 961,383 18,585,338
Comprising: BiE:
At cost KAE 5,933,917 - 10,861,938 576,569 204,800 7,731 961,383 18,546,338
At valuation 2011 5% = 39,000 = = = = = 39,000
5,933,917 39,000 10,861,938 576,569 204,800 7,731 961,383 18,585,338
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND Rt i & R &
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%4-f—-A° 240,046 = 700,888 26,739 7,085 7,658 = 982,411
Exchange adjustments EXAR 21,253 - 63,206 4,981 1,313 - - 90,753
Provided for the year REERE 110,572 1,158 429,223 55,974 12,642 - - 609,569
Elimination on revaluation EfEWH - (1,158) - - - - - (1,158)
Elimination on disposals HERH (130) - (100) (1,048) (1,632) - - 2,910)
At 31 December 2010 WZZ-T5+ZA=+-H 371,741 - 1,193,217 86,646 19,408 7,653 - 1,678,665
Exchange adjustments EHA% 40,597 - 156,832 36,525 10,767 - - 244,721
Provided for the year REERE 149,578 985 565,679 60,207 24,383 - = 800,832
Elimination on revaluation Ryl - (985) - - - - = (985)
Elimination on disposals HEmE (210) - (311) (385) (1,942) - - (2,848)
At 31 December 2011 R-B--%£+-fA=+-AH 561,706 - 1,915,417 182,993 52,616 7,653 - 2,720,385
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31 December 2011 R=B--%+-A=1-H 5,372,211 39,000 8,946,521 393,576 152,184 78 961,383 15,864,953
At 31 December 2010 RWZZ-T5+=-A=+-H 3,849,632 38,000 7,027,790 446,997 104,113 78 1,349,596 12,816,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress), less their estimated residual value, if any, using

the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Cement plant and facilities 30 years

Leasehold land and office Over the unexpired term
buildings of lease

Plant and machinery 15 years

Furniture, fixtures and office

equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Lighters 10 years

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 0 55 i R W

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z2-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -HERRKE (&)

(Continued)

The leasehold land and office building is situated in Hong B A BB EGEMITEAS S & ERT
Kong under long term leases and was revalued on 31 BERAERATNR-E——F+_A=1+—
December 2011 at HK$39,000,000 (2010: HK$38,000,000) BEHAKBERBERABOLURESZHE
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent ETHERAEEFT REBEAREBZA
firm of qualified professional valuers, at open market value Bl T B & fi§ £39,000,0008 T (ZE—F
on existing use basis. The resulting surplus arising from the £ :38,000,0007TC) cRZE——F T =
revaluation at 31 December 2011 of HK$1,985,000 (2010: A=+—BZEH A /31,985,000 T
HK$4,758,000) was dealt with in the land and building —ZT—TF:4,758,0008 L) - ER L
revaluation reserve. Had there not been any revaluation of H R EFE A REEARE W EE Y
this property, its carrying amount at cost less accumulated ¥EHEREM(R R ——F+=A
depreciation and any impairment losses at 31 December =T —HAZKRAREERZRFTITEREW
2011 would be HK$294,000 (2010: HK$295,000). B B 1 12 1 /294,000 T (ZE —F

£ : 295,000/ 7T ) ©

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FEHHEMRE

2011 2010
—F——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH T F# T

Leasehold land in PRC A AR B A AR HAFR 49
Medium-term lease HEZ L 1,791,931 1,640,513

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITIEEHAE

Non-current portion IR B E 10 1,745,207 1,599,818
Current portion Vi %) 46,724 40,695
1,791,931 1,640,513

13 V8 I B4 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& B U 85 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7. B EE
Customer Computer
Goodwill base software Total
[k EFER BB G e

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAx TAT

CcoST RE
At 1 January 2010 R-—Z—ZF—HF—H 4,516,691 31,901 22,707 4,571,299
Arising on acquisition of WHERBARRES

subsidiaries 1,797,652 51,985 - 1,849,637
Additions =T - - 676 676
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 3 B - - 977 977
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H 6,314,343 83,886 24,360 6,422,589
Arising on acquisition of WEEKT B A AR E &

subsidiaries 18,449 - - 18,449
Additions NE - - 1,159 1,159
Disposals & = = (4) (4)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 5 % - - 1,011 1,011
At 31 December 2011 R-ZZE——F+-ZA=+—H 6,332,792 83,386 26,526 6,443,204
AMORTISATION AND B MR E

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FF—H—H 3,722,639 31,901 4,181 3,758,721
Charge for the year REE# 5 - 11,552 3,512 15,064
Exchange adjustments BEE 57, 38 B - - 243 243
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—FF+ZA=+—H8 3,722,639 43,453 7,936 3,774,028
Charge for the year REE# = 17,328 3,901 21,229
Elimination on disposals & gH = = (@) (2
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 58 - - 384 384
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-B=+—H 3,722,639 60,781 12,219 3,795,639
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZHA=1+—H 2,610,153 23,105 14,307 2,647,565
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—TF+ZA=+—H 2,501,704 40,433 16,424 2,648,561
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Particulars EERTFE/TRERH - A E R E R
regarding its impairment testing are disclosed in Note 18. Al AFBERMTISHE - FTEEMERE
other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated EREMEAAFHRRNNEZEREUTE
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following A G
rates per annum:
Customer base 33.3% ?\)5 ERt 33.8%
Computer software 20% R B A 20%

130 TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# o B 2% e B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE

ASSETS
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
business combinations have been allocated to the following

cash generating units:

8. B & ERERAHA

SRBEAAME XBAMHMELEZEE
BEESEETINRGELEN

2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Upper Value Investments Limited Upper Value Investments
(“Upper Value”) Limited ([Upper
Value | ) 1,797,652 1,797,652
TCC (Guigang) Cement Ltd. B (EB)KEBR
NG 794,052 794,052
Kong On Cement Holdings Limited BRIKRIERE R A A
(“Kong On”) ([HB%]) 18,449 =
2,610,153 2,691,704

During the year ended 31 December 2011, management of
the Group determines that there is no impairment of any of

its CGUs containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and

its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections covering a 10-
year period, based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate of 9.1% (2010: 7.9%)
per annum. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated with zero growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.

WRE-F——F+- A=+ ALFE
o AEE2 EREEE LR DER
BrReEEEAE

TRBEEAEM I AIMEHERATE
RS EERMMAT

RERTELBMUZAIREIHBIRIEE
REEHENIEE REEEEAILE
ZHBREUAREFIA% (ZF—FF:
79%) ZFHRE  ZAETAERREDR
ZI0FZRERETAR - REFH 2R A
EREDRTIRR MR - H M REAFR
ERA/MEEBEZEREBEFETEZ
TEBRREBBEAEEHEEREN ZFMAF
DREBEZEMN 2 BERBREEBYMS
BRMEMESL-
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19. MINING RIGHTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 5 i R I

For the year ended 31 December 2011 P oE——

FHA=+—HILFE

19. SR #E

HK$’ 000
FE T

COST R
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZEF—H—H 213,584
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEMB AR REE 123,137
Additions NE 68,933
Exchange adjustments PE 5+ SR & 16,785
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+_H=1+—H 422,439
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries UTBE B B A A BF = A 11,516
Additions NE 2,347
Exchange adjustments PE 5+ 3E & 18,163
At 31 December 2011 R=-ZE——F+=-HA=+—H 454,465
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #85 RO E
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZF—H—H 8,072
Charge for the year NEZHH 15,055
Exchange adjustments & A 750
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+-_H=+—H 23,877
Charge for the year NS 22,430
Exchange adjustments e AR 1,525
At 31 December 2011 R=-ZE——%+=-H=+—H 47,832
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2011 R-Z2——F+=-HA=+—H 406,633
At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZFF+_-_F=+—H 398,562

The mining rights are amortised using the straight-line

method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful

lives.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 U 55 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 20 ENRI R NBERATE
TO AN ASSOCIATE

T

2011 2010
—E-—F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Cost of investments in unlisted associates ~ 3E E M HE & QA 7] 2 &
(DN 1,142,821 1,142,821

Share of post-acquisition profits, and B EE 25 R

other comprehensive income, HE2mE = (kR
net of dividends income R BN ) 313,245 271,955
1,456,066 1,414,776
Loan to an associate Bt R R E X - 2,200

RERRRR EERARFAE

o

/)

The loan to an associate was interest-free, unsecured and

mE I
!

g
Ui
iy
|
il

fully repaid during the year.

3 U 1 B AR A A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 T 5 A A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

20 HE N EaRBKE AR BN
(%)
RZF-——FRZF-FTF+A=1—
A AEBEZHEQRFERINMT :

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continuead)
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2011 and

2010 are as follows:

134

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting
Name of associate and operation interest power held Principal activity
BRERZ PR
BEANREMW SRR AR S R E i R ke 1 REELE FEXEH
Baoshan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K. Wah Cement H distribution of
Construction Materials cement and
Co. Ltd. clinker
RILE #5 &R HERDHKOR R
B ARAR
Hong Kong Concrete Hong Kong 31.5% 31.5% Production and
Company Limited BB distribution of
BRRIBRAR ready-mixed
concrete
EERDHEEHBRT
Kenic Investment British Virgin 40% 40% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/ REER
BAKRERBRAR AR Hong Kong
RERUES /B

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 U 55 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 20 MENRIEERBE ARER

3

TO AN ASSOCIATE (continuea)

(%)

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting
Name of associate and operation interest power held Principal activity
BEEERZ i %
BERNEEE E AR 3L % AR it B Ee 41 RERLLH FEXR
Prosperity Conch The PRC 25% 25% Manufacture and
Cement Company H distribution
Limited of cement and
REBBIRER clinker
BERA BUE R D HKOR R
Quon Hing Concrete Hong Kong 50% 50% Production and
Company Limited BB distribution of
BERR T HRAA ready-mixed
concrete
EERDHEEHBRT
Yunnan Kungang & The PRC 30% 30% Manufacture and
K. Wah Cement H distribution of
Construction Materials cement and
Co. Ltd. clinker
EHEMEEKE BUE R D KR R
EMARRDA

£ VR 12 R4 A PR ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 5 i R I

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B F——F A=+ —AIFE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN

TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates, after taking into account the fair value

20.BMENFRERBELTNER
(%)
AEEMEDRAZMBENEE (Gt
RNWIER 2 AT ERE) BN T

adjustments upon acquisition, are set out below:

2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT TFAIT
Total assets wEE 6,969,191 6,609,449
Total liabilities BmERE (1,771,449) (1,551,360)
Net assets BEFE 5,197,742 5,058,089
Group’s share of AEBEHENRZ
associates’ net assets BEFR 1,456,066 1,414,776
Revenue Wz 5,156,085 3,197,243
Profit for the year N E 5 F 839,975 775,096
Other comprehensive income AFEEEMEE RS
for the year 184,976 153,931
Group’s share of profits and AREBERFEBEQAZ
other comprehensive income of i A T2 H Ath 2 T U aE
associates for the year 292,825 264,601
21.LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. BB =&
2011 2010
—2——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FABIT
Loan receivables FEWE K 464,818 130,980
Less: Current portion of loan receivables B BB R E I 5
(Note 26) (FHF7E26) 377,671 21,240
Non-current portion of loan receivables e E 2 IEmENEB 10 87,147 109,740

As at 31 December 2011, the loan receivables amounting
to RMB377,900,000 (2010: RMB111,000,000) (equivalent
to HK$464,818,000 (2010: HK$130,980,000)) are
unsecured, and will mature in 2012 to 2018. The loan
receivables included an amount of RMB70,851,000 (2010:
RMB93,000,000) (equivalent to HK$87,147,000 (2010:
HK$109,740,000)) which carries variable interest rate with
reference to the benchmark loan rates of financial institutions
set by The People’s Bank of China maturing in 2013 to
2018. The remaining balances are non-interest bearing.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—8 EKEXR
AR #377,900,0007T (=T —ZFF: AR
#111,000,0007T) (48 & 7 464,818,000
BT (ZF—Z 4 : 130,980,000/ 7T ) )
AEEHEERER-_E——FF_F— N\
FHH —EEKRERARKE70,851,000
T (ZZ—ZF: A R#93,000,0007T)
(HHE M87,147,0008 T (— B — T 4 :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# B U 5 ¥ A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

22.INVESTMENTS 22. /&
2011 2010
—E2——-F —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT T
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEETARARE 5 - A 57,501 59,772
Held-for-trading investments BEXZRAEZRE
Listed equity securities, at market value ETRAES EmE
Listed in Hong Kong REA LT 31,532 33,242
Listed elsewhere REM M ETH - 238,613
31,532 271,855
Quoted investment funds, BEHREES ERYE
at fair value 53,354 55,245
84,886 327,100

Available-for-sale investments

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong and Taiwan. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

Held-for-trading investments

The fair values of the held-for-trading investments are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the relevant exchanges or prices provided by
counterparty financial institutions. The quoted investment
funds can be disposed of at the prices provided by the

counterparty financial institutions on a regular basis.

THEERE
AEFEMBRERREBARRBEZEMAKL
ZMABRBBETZHRLTRAESRE -
R|EMRARKNBRETE RESE
BAVEZAHEEETEN AUHES
RRWEZ N FETREAIFEHE-

FEXZRAEZRE

N ERBERZRiE 2 REZ N FETRE
HEXZAARcTHEANELH TS/
WEMREHCEREE -AEREESH
BHLTCRBBEEMREZERLEE -

U I 45 A R ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 T 5 A A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)

23

EERBEE BE
AT AAEEFR®RRZ X EEEHNEEE

recognised by the Group and the movements thereon during (BE)ERANFEEANREE -
the year.
Fair value Withholding
adjustments Accelerated Revaluation Revaluation tax on
on business tax of land and of mining undistributed
combination depreciation buildings rights earnings Others Total
EBEBAH TR RABER
ZAVERE  MEHERE BPREf FREER ZENH Hih @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET TR TR TR
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-TE-F-A (197,005) @ (5,559 - - ) (202,634)
Exchange adjustments &A% - - (341) (193) - 9 (525)
Credit (charge) to profitor ~ RERB=FA (k)

loss for the year (Hiit12)

(Note 12) 9,330 “2) 678 251 (10,944) 477 (250)
Avising on acquisition of YR E R RS EE

subsidiaries (114,569) - (7,999) (4,530) (31,514) - (158,612)
Credit to other REL2EMREA

comprehensive income - - (795) - - - (795)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZE+-F=1-8 (302,244 (45) (14,010) (4,472) (42,458) 43 (362,816)
Exchange adjustments &A% - - (339) (181) - ) (521)
Credit (charge) to profitor ~ RERB=FA (k)

loss for the year (Hiit12)

(Note 12) 11,501 (39) (177) 351 (10,100) (571) 965
Withholding tax paid BREmH - - - - 8,683 - 8,683
Avrising on acquisition of WEMBARREE

subsidiaries - - (2,881) - (457) - (3,338)
Credit to other REMZERRA

comprehensive income - - (238) - - - (238)
At 31 December 2011 R-E-—-£+-A=1-8 (290,743) ©4) (17,645) (4,302) (44,332) (159) (357,265)
The analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial EMBE2RAE 2 ELEHIEARD TN
reporting purposes is as follows: T*é

2011 2010

g% —z-%4

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHTT

Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE (358,144) (364,091)
Deferred tax assets RIETIH & B 879 1,275
(357,265) (362,816)

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# o B 5 e W

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

24,

(Continued)

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$91,496,000
(2010: HK$193,100,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses brought
forward from prior years of approximately HK$4,840,000
(2010: HK$2,283,000) have been expired in current year.
The unrecognised tax losses may be forward indefinitely
except the losses of approximately HK$48,984,000 (2010:
HK$159,262,000) that will expire in 2016.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$2,111,838,000 (2010:
HK$681,547,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less, which carry at market rates.

23.

24,

EEREBEEE 868 (&)

NEE 2 I8 B 18 4 /291,496,0007% 7T
(ZZT—ZF%:193,100,000% 7t ) ' A A
P 85 R 2K FE AR B 0 ) o B3 AR R 2R F 2R
TREATR - B\ ZFEEIBERIE
EREEE -AEFELABE 2 REERY
4,840,000% 7t ( = Z — Z 4 : 2,283,000
B IT) BRSNS JE i © BR 4948,984,000/% 7T
(ZZ—F 4 159,262,000/ 7T ) Z K518
BRI REEMIN RERRIEEE
A EPR AR AL S o

BEPECERSEHRABE BT
NE—RA—BR BHFENERF M
BEFmERZKREBKREMND AR
AEBAENEHEREZBHEE ME
RERRAETGRA] R KRER K
TEMBARZ RetEMEE 2 ERE
BE#2,111,838,0008 L (=T —Z F :
681,547,000/ 7T ) I M 4R & B IS Ik A
TEHRE T IH B -

BEMEBITER EHER
RERBITEER
BeRPALBOEREERE 2 HER
BB = {8 A s b = 18 B B B0 52 7 5 A
K82 EHBRITER
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

24.

25.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(Continued)

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 3.60% (2010: 0.01% to 1.44%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits and time deposits carry
interest at fixed rate ranging from 0.15% to 5.50% (2010:
0.15% to 4.55%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank loans or

the completion of relevant sales or purchases contracts.

Majority of the cash and bank balances were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The RMB exchange rate is determined
by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the Government of the PRC.

4. EEBBITEREHRER

BERIBITHEHSES &)

RITHERRE BTSN ENFEF0.01%
Z£3.60% (ZZE—ZF:0.01%%E1.44%)
R -BHEMRITHERRE BHEFRIREE
FMENFEHF015%E5.50% (ZF—F
F:0.15%%4.55% )t B - B EMIRITF
FREREEREARTERIXTKEREE
BHBERR -

Rty 2R e RBITEHRBARNAREF
B MARETARBEMS EEHEK -
ARBERXHTBERFEE @ %FK
TE I W B3R HNA X R B BN B i 2 I E
BRIl P AR PR ©

INVENTORIES 25. 78
2011 2010
—2——F —TFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Raw materials and consumables R K 5 RS 936,254 566,604
Work in progress T2 M 350,496 188,994
Finished goods ZUPX on 205,105 139,507
1,491,855 895,105

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011



26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 S 255 i 3 B

»ha

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

26. AN RIE - HERHMWERRE

RECEIVABLES

2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Prepayments and advances SEENE =P ET 954,563 686,672
Deposits b 17,088 7,096

Current portion of loan receivables B E FOR B 2B 1D
(Note 21) (Ktaz21) 377,671 21,240
Amount due from an associate & LB = N B A 82,616 805
Dividend receivable from associates & Y B 2 N B AR B 132,704 =
Other receivables E 1th e g 5008 130,719 97,695
1,695,361 813,508

All of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are

expected to be recovered within one year.

Note: The amount due from an associate is interest fee, unsecured

and expected to be recovered within one year.

P TB A F0R - R o oAl 8 YR IR TR
R —FRUmE -

Bt - EUEE = RRRIRTRE - EIEH A TR
R —FRkE -

TRADE RECEIVABLES

27. EWE Z R

2011 2010

—E——F —ZT-ZF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables from outsiders FEWAINR AL 2B ZRER 2,193,966 1,802,324
Trade receivables from associates JEWEEE N E 2 B HERR 12,032 9,630
2,205,998 1,811,954

£ VR 12 R4 A PR ]
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

Before accepting any new customers with credit limit, the
Group assesses the historical background and credibility
which are available in the market. The credit limit will be
reference to the result of research and will be reviewed once
a year. More than 63% (2010: 55%) of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired is recovered within
three months after the end of reporting period. No provision
has been made for the trade receivables as at 31 December
2011 (2010: nil).

The Group'’s policy is to allow a credit period of 90-180 days
to its trade customers (including associates). The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

27.EWE Z R (&)

REMEFMEERERBZHTLA A
SEEFEMETAESZELE R RE
FKF -BRIRBRER 2B EREE -
BEAXREERKSEFEN —RABRKRRE -
B63% (—FT—FF:55% ) ZEWE FR
FEEARBARARBELRBE BaXREY
BRE=ZEAARKE R _T——F+_
A=+—8 AEELEEWRE SRR
R ERBEE(ZE—ZF: &) -

AEERRERGETESIER (BREBER
A)90E180H Z BRARH - AT R $ 5 88
REWEZEFRERBHZRER DN

2011 2010

—E2——F —ZT-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FaT FET

0 - 90 days 0Z90A 1,410,547 1,004,410
91 - 180 days 91ZE180H 748,285 766,472
181 — 365 days 181%365H 47,166 41,072
2,205,998 1,811,954

At the reporting date, trade receivables of approximately
HK$47,166,000 (2010: HK$41,072,000) which have been
past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss because management
is of the opinion that the fundamental credit quality of
these customers has not deteriorated. Hence, there is no
expectation of significant recoverability problem. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over 365
days because historical experience is such that receivables
that are past due beyond 365 days are generally not
recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

RImEH - EBKRE S ERA £47,166,000
BT (2T —F4F 41,072,000/ 7T ) & B
BERE AL B R Z S A EL R EES
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EAEEERWET R AL BT
REARKERBE AEBEWERZELS
B TAEAR-
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28. TRADE PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

28. BB Z RN

2011 2010

—E2——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Trade payables to outsiders ERINRALZESER 1,620,059 1,575,080
Trade payables to ultimate holding BASEERARZ

company B 5 R% 2,929 38,731
Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries ERREREWNBARZ

B 5N 28,943 9,518

1,651,931 1,623,329

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

AT RRmERRZENESRRIEER

&
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HEH Z BR R AT

2011 2010

—F——fF —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

0-90 days 0£90H 1,430,113 1,174,129

91-180 days 91£180H 68,570 414,397

181-365 days 1812365H 125,848 23,088

Over 365 days 365H M £ 27,400 11,715

1,651,931 1,623,329

The trade balances due to the ultimate holding company and

fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-fee and repayable

RARERT 28 MER

i

in accordance with normal trading terms. EE-

N &EERARARRAZMBARZE
2

S No

EHE 5%

U I 45 A B ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

29. BANK LOANS 20.8R1TER
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT
Secured A 1,932,744 3,289,015
Unsecured 4 4K 1 11,254,989 8,730,009
13,187,733 12,019,024
The loans are repayable as follows: EFGESRHAT
Within one year —FR 3,771,517 3,529,456
More than one year but not BB —FENHEAMRE
exceeding two years 2,199,867 4,293,609
More than two years but not BAMFETBRBEASE
exceeding five years 5,678,849 3,427,959
Over five years AFENE - 768,000
Carrying amount of bank loans that HERERZDHMBLREK
are repayable on demand due to BEZRITEREERE
breach of loan covenants (shown (FIRREEEET)
under current liabilities) 1,537,500 -
13,187,733 12,019,024
Less: Amounts due for settlement WAR—FAEBEZ
within one year (shown under I (B
current liabilities) BEET) (5,309,017) (3,529,456)
Amounts due for settlement ER—F1&EEZHIA
after one year 7,878,716 8,489,568

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

29. BANK LOANS (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, certain subsidiaries of the Group
breached certain financial covenants as stipulated in the
loan agreements entered into by the subsidiaries with a
total carrying amount of RMB1,250 million (equivalent to
HK$1,537.5 million) and accordingly the amount has been
classified as a current liability in the consolidated financial

statement.

On discovery of the breach, the Directors informed the
lenders and commenced renegotiations on the terms
of the loans with the relevant banks. Up to the date of
the issue of the consolidated financial statements, the
negotiations are still in progress. The Directors are confident
that negotiations with the lenders will ultimately reach a
successful conclusion. In any event, should the lenders call
for immediate repayment of the loans, the Directors believe
that adequate alternative sources of finance are available to
ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations of

the Group.

The Group’s bank loans that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

20.8RITER (&)

R—_E——F+_A=+—H8 A5EEZ
ETHBARBREMIILZERMBEM
FIAZETHBRL FEHRERARK
1,250,000,0007T ( #8 % 741,537,500,000
Bt Bt ZEBERGEMBREA
DERRBDEE-

MERENER EFCHNSERALRMEA
HERRTEFNERER 2GR -BET
BRAMBRRCBH ERDEET -
EZAEL BERAZEAREKESE
ST AR B AR - EEREEMBERLT  HWE
RABRIZAMEEER  EFHE ~5E
BRERHBRBESRCRIHER  NARER
HBAKBZFHERLEL BERERMERE -

AEENEHRERE

BB ZE
BEtEZRTERNAT:

2011 2010

2% —TFF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Hong Kong dollars BT 612,611 477,662
United States dollars e 5,194,969 3,440,104

All bank loans of the Group are variable-rate loans which
carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”), London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
and benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The

People’s Bank of China.

REBZAMAERTERRIBEERER
T2 EZEFEBRITRAERE ([BERTRE
HED BBERTAEFE ([RBERTH
EHRB D) RPBEARRITAAGE < & B
BEREEMERE -

U B R4 T A PR ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

29. BANK LOANS (Continued) 29. RITER (&)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the RI|BERR AEEHEE T HARRERZ

following undrawn borrowing facilities: BEEE:
2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Floating rate T E) B R

— expiring within one year —R—FAE M 3,138,937 971,644
— expiring beyond one year —R—F&E®R - 1,518,664
3,138,937 2,490,308

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 30. B — U IEEZTRBERIE

SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is FEM— AL ERBE AR E - EIK T
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. RRERKER-

31.SENIOR NOTES N.EBEEE

The senior notes carry nominal interest at a fixed rate of BAEAZBR2EZEEMNE RS FEE X
10% per annum payable semi-annually and repayable by 10% B¥FRN YR —FFHA -
three instalments in May 2010, November 2010 and May —EETF+—ARZZE——FhHAEK=
2011. In accordance with senior note’s repayment schedule, MERER RBELZRBRZEERHER
all of the outstanding senior notes were settled in May 2011. FIEMREEZEBAZEBRBER -2 —F

hRAERE-

32. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING N.ENEBER A TIRE

COMPANY

The amount due to immediate holding company is carrying ENEBERARRKEALZREZBRT
interest with reference to HIBOR, unsecured and will be REFREFE BERAKR-_Z—=F
repayable on 30 December 2013. +-—A=tRHEZE-

146 TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2011

In order to enlarge the market share in PRC, the Group
completed the following acquisitions during the year ended
31 December 2011.

In May 2011, the Group acquired 65% equity interest
of Kong On Cement Holdings Limited (“Kong On”)
from an independent third party for a consideration of
US$11,677,500 (equivalent to HK$90,734,000). Kong On
is an investment holding company and its subsidiary is
engaged in manufacture and distribution of cement products

in Guizhou.

In October 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Wayly Holdings Limited (“Wayly”)
from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$180,280,000. Wayly is an investment holding company
and its subsidiary is engaged in manufacturing and

distribution of cement in Guizhou.

Both acquisitions have been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill and bargain
purchase gain arising as a result of the acquisitions of Kong
On and Wayly were approximately HK$18,449,000 and
HK$4,298,000 respectively.

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$2,471,000 have
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been
recognised as an expense in the year, and included in
the “general and administrative expenses” line item in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

33. B B 2 |

BE-ZE——F+-A=+—HLEFE
BEARFBzMSEHE AEEREE
—E——F+ A=+ —HIEFEAZTK
THI Y o

RZTE——FFA AEEURE
11,677,500 7T (#H%1290,734,000/& 7T )
M—2BYE=FRBBERKRERER
DE([B%]) 265%HiE - BB — B
BERAr] MEMBARITREMKES
BE R D HKTE G

RZE-——F+A XEEURE
180,280,000/ 7T [\l — & 1B 8 = 77 B B
MERBRAT (TEF]) 22 HBEEITR
o BF A —MREERAR  MEAKBR
AR EMNREEE R D HAREMR

MIEWEE KA REEAR - AREEL
FEAEEZEERZEBWEKZD BIA
/518,449,000 7T 24,298,000/ JT

FR - W iEERE R AN & 812,471,00078 TT I
Rt AWBRERAR  MRERE 2 E WX
Z[—BRITBAX]IBERERRFEX -
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Continued)

The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the goodwill

N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For 7 B 5 R A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

33. B B 2 |
——F+=A=t-HLEE

BE-Z
(%)

7] (#)

REXGWECEEFEMRMELEZE

arising, are as follows: =31
Kong On Wayly Total
BR B A #at
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment b E R 136,703 526,183 662,886
Prepaid lease payments B HEERIE 23,545 62,769 86,314
Mining rights RIEE 5,540 5,976 11,516
Deposits paid for the acquisition of EN& BYE HERSER
property, plant and equipment and CEEEMZF]®
other assets 39,130 - 39,130
204,918 594,928 799,846
Current assets REEE
Inventories £ - 52,978 52,978
Prepaid lease payments 1B 47 & FUE 494 2,047 2,541
Prepayments, deposits and BNRE BER
other receivables (note) H b U FE (H:E) 30,815 50,845 81,660
Trade receivables (note) RWE 5 R (M) - 13,710 13,710
Tax recoverables A] 45 Bl #5878 = 1,827 1,827
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRRITER 5,994 - 5,994
Cash and bank balances Re MIBITHER 6,558 12,378 18,936
43,861 133,785 177,646
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payable ERE 5 8RR - 26,094 26,094
Other payables and accrued liabilites — E 4 B~ 58 & Bt & (& 21,123 49,010 70,133
Bank loans RITE K 1,794 54,873 56,667
Loan payables ERTER 95,248 292,140 387,388
118,165 422,117 540,282
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 16,146 121,940 138,086
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 3,260 78 3,338
19,406 122,018 141,424
111,208 184,578 295,786
note: The trade and other receivables acquired with a fair value Kzt - B EE A F(E15,312,000% 7T 2 FE U 2

of HK$15,312,000 has gross contractual amounts of

HK$15,312,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of

contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Z 8RR E b RS

RIBZ BRI MBER

15,312,000/ 7t ° 78 B A U iE B HR-R AT Uk
BB REEREAT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo B U B5 ¥ A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Continued)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in Kong On recognised at

the acquisition date was measured with reference to

the proportionate share of the Kong On’s net assets

at the acquisition date and amounted to approximately

HK$38,923,000.

3. WEH B QT (&)
BEZE-Z——H+-"HA=1+—HILEE

(&)
HERE

B AR B R Z IR ER KR
ENEBALZRWERHcEEFEZ LA
T2 - E S5 438,923,000/ Tt ©

Kong On Wayly
BR BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Goodwill (bargain purchase gain) arising KBEEEELEZEHE
on acquisition (REWERE)

Consideration transferred BEHEHENRE 90,734 180,280
Plus: Non-controlling interests o0 : SEIERR R 38,923 =
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets BB R BRI ERE

acquired ZRFE (111,208) (184,578)

Goodwill (bargain purchase gain) arising WHEEBEEZHE

on acquisition (& E W W) 18,449 (4,298)
Kong On Wayly Total

BR B F mat

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TET T TET

Net cash outflow arising on WEEEELECRSREFE
acquisition

Cash consideration ReHE 90,734 180,280 271,014
Less: Cash and bank balances BWoBMEBzRER

acquired RITAEER (6,558) (12,378) (18,936)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition Ui = IHE & 2 B & it i F 88 84,176 167,902 252,078

£V I PR A A PR )
2011 4E#t
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 3. WIEME A A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Kong On because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Kong On.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is expected

to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group
During the year, Kong On and Wayly contributed
approximately HK$44.3 million to the Group’s revenue and a

loss of approximately HK$22.0 million to the Group’s results

BE-Z——+=-ZA=+—HLEFE
(#&)

HEHRABFEEGERE WEEER
EXEmEB N BEHINIREER L
BREEBREAREHRARGE s Fme i
Wé%%~*%ﬁ%%@~u&%a2@%
AF - BHRZEFMNETHFEAIHNELE
EZHEREE WU EERESRBER -

RRBREL ZHEBRF AR -

KBBEH LA EFEERE

FR BLERBEAMNRKBEAREZE T
——F+ A=t ALBHALAEE
U 25 B Bt 4944,300,0008 T K B A E 2

for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 1575 5K 518 922,000,000/ JT ©
2011.
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Continued)

If the acquisition of Kong On and Wayly had been completed
on 1 January 2011, there would be insignificant effect on
the Group’s revenue and profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January

2011, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

In order to enlarge the market share in PRC, the Group
completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Upper Value on 30 April 2010. The Company acquired
from Pro-Rise Business Limited (“Pro-Rise”), a third party,
the entire issued share capital of Upper Value which
principal activity is investment holding and its subsidiaries
are engaged in manufacturing and distribution of cement
and Pro-Rise assigned the shareholder loan as at 30
September 2009 to the Company at a cash consideration
of HK$3,800,000,000. This acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$1,797,652,000.

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$12,414,000 have been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and have been recognised as an expense in
the year, within the “general and administrative expenses”
line item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

33. WK B A (&)

BE-Z——+=-ZA=+—HLEFE
(#&)

WEEELZRRFMNER T ——F— A
— Bk TeEHHE_T——F+=-A
S+ —BILEFEAEEZWE R A EHE
BABGBFEXNEATE -BHEERTY
EHFIACH UAAERMKESZIER
%:%——E—E—E%&%'$E@§
BREEmMBz e REEEBZIER KT
ﬁﬁ%%%%%Zﬁmo

BE-_F-2F+-A=+t-HLEE
REARPBEzTSHE AEER
—E-FTEMNAH =+ HEKKEUpper
ValueZ #fE #ITR AN - AR Al AR & K
{&3,800,000,000/% 7T [A] — % 5 = 73 Pro-
Rise Business Limited ([Pro-Rise ] )&
B Upper ValueZ 2B 1T ZA (Upper
ValueZ T ZX¥ B REBEEREREAWE R
AR E KR BERDHER) - Pro-
RiseRARBIEER_ZSTAFNAA=T
BzRREF -HWHBEEERA KB
AR AWBEEEEACAESENA
1,797,652,000/% JT °

FANBEWESEZKAL12,414,000
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁA%%%ﬁz&$m'ﬁ%ﬁ

2EMER [—RETBEFAX]EER
%%ﬁﬁ§°
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 3. WIEME A A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued) BE-_Z—ZF+-HA=1+—HLEFE
(#&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill ZRGBIBZ EEFERMEAZEE
arising, are as follows: (1IN
Fair value
AFEE
HK$’000
FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - Jﬁﬁ}%& 5 2,269,189
Prepaid lease payments FEANHEE R 664,030
Customer base EPER 51,985
Mining rights KRz 123,137
Interests in associates P& N AR 1,087,478
Deposits for acquisition of property, GRS Jﬂ%& S E] &
plant and equipment 307,771
Deposits for acquisition of WEENHEERB 2
prepaid lease payments 22,484
Deposits for acquisition of mining rights WISHIERE 23] & 28,816
Deferred tax assets IR IH & E 873
4,555,763
Current assets ‘Eﬁ.iﬁﬁé
Inventories FE 81,497
Prepaid lease payments SEENRiEN - 8,561
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 98 1 2078 - ? é&ﬁﬁﬂéﬁ%%ﬂlﬁ 117,739
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K 497,044
Amount due from non-controlling shareholder & W JE 2 Hﬁﬁﬁ%m 16,179
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMBITER 3,017
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAE 162,722
876,759
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables IS E 5 R 320,561
Other payables and accrued liabilities HibENFIEREAE 783,523
Tax payables FE IR 10,853
Bank loans RITE R 514,650
Senior notes BEEE 801,032
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JE A< FE 4 % I R R IE 93,526
2,524,145
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 685,257
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE 159,485
844,742
2,063,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo B U B5 ¥ A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)

notes:

The trade and other receivables and amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder acquired with a fair value of approximately
HK$630,962,000 had gross contractual amounts of approximately
HK$689,396,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was

approximately HK$58,434,000.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in Upper Value recognised
at the acquisition date was determined with reference
to the proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets
at the acquisition date and amounted to approximately
HK$61,287,000.

3. WEH B QT (&)

BE-_Z—ZF+-A=+—HILFE
(%)
Hrit :

Uk i e LK 5 B R e Lt R LU RR T DA I B U I
122 7% % B R TE 2 A B 49 £630,962,00078 7T
HA X4 5689,396,000/8 7T B & £ % 12
BHERT RKBEEHZBHTAKES S
&M E L H58,434,000% 7T ©

FZERE

Upper Value A Ug I8 B BifE R 2 FEIE AR 25
DEZ2ZHEHRBBEARIRNKERR &
EFE L HIEE  H#) R61,287,000/8

JG ©

HK$’ 000
T
Goodwill arising on acquisition KWBEEEELE2HSE
Consideration transferred BEERE 3,800,000
Plus: Non-controlling interests N VTR R A 61,287
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets W EWEARAEEFE 2 ATE
acquired (2,063,635)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEES 2B 1,797,652
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WBREBEELE2REREFE
Cash consideration ReRE 3,800,000
Less: Deposit paid in prior year B EAFEMNZE 2 (804,410)
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired B B 2 R e RIRITA (152,722)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEBEEA RS ML FE 2,842,868

£V I PR A A PR )
2011 4E#t
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Upper Value because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Upper Value.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

During the year, management has finalised the fair value
assessment of Upper Value at the date of acquisition. No
adjustments were made to the assets and liabilities of Upper

Value upon finalisation of the fair value assessment.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected

to be deductible for tax purposes.

During the year end 31 December 2010, Upper Value
contributed approximately HK$1,521.4 million to the
Group’s revenue and approximately HK$260.8 million to the
Group’s profit for the period from the date of acquisition to
31 December 2010.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2010,
the Group’s total revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$8,672.6 million, and profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$955.0 million. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January

2010, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

33. WK B A (&)

HE_Z-Z2F+-A=1t-HLFE
(#&)
B & O A B 3E 1 IR R (B - B Upper
ValueEE £ B It e XN 2 RE
EREBEBEERKREHBRE M= F
é%ﬁ Wi R -RRMISEHERE UK
Upper ValueZ #8188 A F - AR ZEF =T
RENRNEREEZRRIZE WA E
HEESRER -

FR - EEEEEERWE R BUpper
ValueZ A F B - MEBEREE QAT EFT
fE & EUpper Valuez BEN B EELEHA

ﬁmko

R EEREL CHERET TR AK -

REBEE_ZT—TF+_A=+—HILF
& * Upper Value%@ﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ_ﬁii 5 —
TFE+-_A=+t—BILHHEAYAEEZK
@ R A2 R E R AI1,521,400,0008 7T &
#9260,800,0007% T °

HMUBEEER - —FF— A —
B AFNAEERLRKREBELN AR
8,672,600,000% 7T + & A = A 1% )
955,000,000 7T * 5 Z B} T {EHEHA 2
B -BETAERMEBEEER _Z—F
F-A—BAZTK NEEERATESG 2K
mREERBEEE M TRIERRKE
1B TEAl



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES

22 I
,%/Ji i}

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z2-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

4. BAR—EBR

Number of

ordinary shares

S 25 it % W

EBERHUE
‘000 HK$’000
Tk FHET
Authorised: EERA -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0.108 L Ll
At 1 January 2010 RZE-—TF—-H—H 2,348,830 234,883
Increased during the year (note a) RERNIEN (A ita) 2,651,170 265,117
At 31 December 2010 and R-ZZE-—ZEF+-_HA=+—HK
31 December 2011 —E——$+ZA=t—H 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHRRKRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each R E0.1078 T 2 T A%
At 1 January 2010 RZE—TF—H—H 1,289,050 128,905
Issued under placing (note b) RIS ETHE TR M
(Hiiztb) 256,568 25,657
Conversion of non-redeemable ¥ 44 1 7] 7B 0] ) 8 A4 St AR

convertible preference shares (Hite)

(note c) 651,170 65,117
Exercise of share options (note d) IR RRE (AFd) 300 30
Issued under rights issue (note e) RIB AR E BT (A ite) 1,098,544 109,854
At 31 December 2010 and RZZE-—ZTF+_A=+—8BR

1 January 2011 —E——%—H—H 3,295,632 329,563
Conversion of non-redeemable ¥ 4% 7 BT B (0] m] B4 B SR AR

convertible preference shares (HaEr)

(note 1) 8 1
At 31 December 2011 R_Z——%+_A=+—H 3,295,635 329,564

£ VR I R A A PR ]
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N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 B 5 A I

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE_F——F+_H=1+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL — ORDINARY SHARES
(Continued)

notes:

(@)

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 23 February 2010, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$300,000,000
divided into 2,348,830,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
and 651,170,000 convertible preference shares of HK$0.10
each to HK$565,117,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each and 651,170,000 convertible
preference shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an
additional 2,651,170,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10

each.

Reference was made to the two announcements of the
Company dated 14 January 2010 and 22 January 2010, the
controlling shareholder of the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent and the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with its controlling shareholder
in relation to a top-up placing, on a best effort basis, of
256,568,000 ordinary shares of the Company were placed
with independent investors at the placing price of HK$3.30 per
share, approximate to the market value at the announcement
date. Completion of the transaction took place on 22 January
2010 and the Company raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$825.4 million (net of transaction costs of approximately
HK$21.3 million) which were applied towards funding the
acquisition of Upper Value (Note 33).

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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M. BEA—EBER (&)
Hiat
(@ WRER-Z—ZF_A-_F+=—H8T2K

RRERIANE L@k FEWR TSN
2,651,170,000% B AR EIE0.1078 7T 2 37 &
AR - 178~ )2 A E AR ZN 83300,000,000
7 7L (9 £2,348,830,0000% & A% M &
0104 7L 2 ¥ @A’ &% 651,170,000/% &

M EEO0 10/ T 2 Al IR ERAR)EE
565,117,000 7t (5 A5,000,000,000
BEKREMEIIOCETLZERER R
651,170,000/ & A% H fE0.10/% JT 2 7] 8
BREER) -

ZRBER

BUHRMAARBHA-T—TF—A
THAR=—ZT—TF-—A=+—HZMH
D AR B PR AR AR R R AR IR ET S B
B AR A HEE R AR R E] R
Wk NAEM RRHNEEUREES
f%3.80/ T (GEAR At B Bz T{E) BA%
E %3 77 & A R 51256,568,0000% I
BRTFTBVREE - ZRFHER=_ZT—F
i*ﬁ:+:5%fﬂz'$@ﬂ§%ﬁﬁﬂ%#\
T8 48 5B 40 5825,400,000% 7T (HIBR X 5
X 75 £921,300,000% 7t ) * E A 1 & U B
Upper Value (f7£33) IRt & & ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &%

34. SHARE CAPITAL — ORDINARY SHARES
(Continued)
notes: (Continued)

(©)

On 22 January 2010, 651,170,000 ordinary shares had been
allotted and issued to the controlling shareholder of the
Company upon the exercise of the convertible preferences

shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, employees of the
Company exercised share options amounting 300,000 shares
at a subscription price of HK$1.266 per share.

On 23 June 2010, the Company issued 1,098,544,023
ordinary shares, on the basis of one rights share for every
two existing shares at the issue price of HK$2.10 per share.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$2,286.0 million
(net of transaction costs of approximately HK$20.9 million)
were raised by the Company, which were applied towards
repayment of the debt financing incurred by the Group to
fund the acquisition of Upper Value (Note 33). The new shares
issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 3,000 ordinary
shares had been allotted and issued to the shareholders of
the Company upon the exercise of the convertible preference
shares. The new shares issued during the year rank pari passu

in all respects with the existing shares in issue.

4. wA—&KB

Bt -

(©

&5 BB R R B
—E——F+ZA=+—HIFE

B (#)
(&)
R-ZE—TF—HF_+_H" 651,170,000
BB I R T A S T R
RETFARF 2 ERER -
REE-T—2E+-A=+—ALEE

A AREZEBIZABESR.266/8 7T
77{£300,00005% % 1 2 s A 4% -

R—ZZ—ZFFEXA=_+=8 ' NAF MK
BIEER2A0B T TIEEHBEMK
BRERMNEE —RERKR D 2 EEEHT
1,098,544,023% & @Ak - N AR R EFT1F
FKIEF R84 52,286,000,000/5 7T (AR A2
5 X 78 #920,900,0007% 7T ) 2. B {E & B 2

& B AU Upper Value (Ff3E33) 12t &
eMEEZBHERE RERNBEITZH
RIDAFIE T ERBETREEROZEARR

)

S

s

@

ABE-T——F+-A=+—BILFE
PR AR BRI (TR AARR
AR R B8 % 5 73,0000 ¥ 7% - RF A E
BT 2RO RAE S EREETRAR
GELICES F 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& B U 85 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 =% ——

35. SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

(“PREFERENCE SHARES”)

FHA=+—HILFE

(ExK])

35. A — A EE n] EHRE LR

Number of
convertible
preference
shares
TERELEREE
‘000 HK$’'000
TR FHET
Authorised: EERA -
Preference Shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI0B T ZBER
At 1 January 2010 and RZE-ZTF—-HA—HEK

31 December 2010 —ZTZ-ZF+-A=+—H 651,170 65,117
Decreased during the year RENRD (Hfita)

(note a) (651,170) (65,117)
Increased during the year (note b) REREN (Ketb) 494,345 49,435
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-H=+—H 494,345 49,435

Issued and fully paid: BEITERHBRRA:
Preference Shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI0B T ZBER
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—ZF—H—H 651,170 65,117
Conversion of Preference Shares ERE LR (M atc)

(note c) (651,170) (65,117)
At 31 December 2010 and RZZE—ZEF+A=+—HEK

1 January 2011 —E——%—H—H - -
Issued on open offer (note d) NRBEMET (M2d) 494,345 49,435
Conversion of Preference Shares EIAE SRR (Hite)

(note e) (3) (1)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB——F+=-A=+-—H 494,342 49,434

The Preference Shares are non-redeemable, carry no voting
right and each of the Preference Share is convertible into
one ordinary share any time after issue.

The preference shareholders are entitled to receive dividend
pari passu with ordinary shareholders on an as converted
basis, in addition are also entitled to preferred distribution
at a rate of 1.0% per annum on the issue price, at HK$4.9
per Preference Share, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
preferred distribution is non-cumulative. The Directors may
in their sole discretion, elect to defer or not pay a preferred
distribution. If the board of Directors elects to defer or not
pay a preferred distribution, the Company shall not pay any
dividends, distributions or make any other payment on any
ordinary shares.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BB RGARIZETESRELR4.9
FBITTIA T F1.0% 2 L RULEUE 5 75 TR I -
WENERREABELERTARKRRE
BEREEmt AR E -BEDIKEFF
RN - ERDIRTAIRE -EEA 2
BHBERERATIINBED K - HE
FEREBEERIITINEEDIK AR
AIBAX N EME AR EARE DK
X E A AT 5 3K o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # %

35. SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES
(“PREFERENCE SHARES?) (Continued)

notes:

(a)

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 1 November 2011, the existing 651,170,000
convertible preference shares of HK$0.10 each (the “Existing
Convertible Preference Shares”) be cancelled and the
authorised share capital of the Company be diminished by the

nominal amount of the Existing Convertible Preference Shares.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 1 November 2011, the authorised share
capital of the Company be changed from HK$565,117,000
divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
and 651,170,000 Existing Convertible Preference Shares
to HK$549,435,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each and 494,344,810 restricted voting
convertible preference shares of a nominal or par value of

HK$0.10 each (“New Convertible Preference Shares”).

On 22 January 2010, 651,170,000 Preference Shares had
been converted into same number of ordinary shares by the
subscription and the full exercise of the conversion rights

attaching to the Preference Shares.

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 9
November 2011 in relation to the Open Offer of 494,344,810
unlisted New Convertible Preference Shares on the basis of
three (3) unlisted New Convertible Preference Shares for every
twenty (20) ordinary shares held on the Record Date at a price
of HK$4.90 per Offer Share. Upon completion of the Open
Offer on 1 December 2011, the Company issued 494,344,810
convertible preference shares and raised total net proceeds of
approximately HK$2,418.7 million (net of transaction costs of
approximately HK$3.6 million), which were applied towards the

intended funding.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 3,000 preference
shares had been converted into the same number of ordinary
shares by the subscription and the exercised of the conversion

rights attaching to the preference shares.

&R BB R B
—E——F+ZA=+—HIFE

35. A — A EE n] EHRE LR
([BEKR]) (#)

Hiat

(a)

BER-_ZT——F+—-—A—BAETZ
REBFANAG ELBBZRER -BE
651,170,000/ & A% H fE0.10/% JT 2 7] 8
BREHZR(REATERELR]) B HE
HMARRZEERAEIZE S A ER
BEKRZEERD -

BER-ZT——F+—-—A—-HETZ
BREFRHAE EBBZRER AQA
ZAERARE H565,117,000% 7T (5
#$5,000,000,000% & i% M 150.10/% JT
2 E 3B K%651,170,0000% 35 & A & i
B % MR) & % A549,435,000/ 7t (9 A
5,000,000,0000% & % E {£0.107% 7T 2 &
A% ) 494,344,8100k T IR E #E sk E 1B &
0.1078 7T 2 PR il B 1% 32 7 AT s 3 (2 55 iR
([FrATEE B AR ) ) »

RZZE—ZF—HF=-+=H " 651,170,000
BRELAREZEABSHEREBEETHEEL
R EmE R SERESE 2@

B o

BEAARBHAE-_ZT——F+—AAN
AzBEER ANAEHENRCHEA S
BRA-TROREBIREE=Q)RI L
MHIAIERELER 2 EEUNGREER
174.907 Tt 2 (B 1% A 7 3% § 494,344,810
RIELETHAFRELER R_F——F
TZA—HEXARBEEE RNORAET
494,344, 810M AT R E LR R EEFTE
SRIEFEEA £ #492,418,700,0007 7T (kK
R 5 B 78 #93,600,0005% 7T ) * 3 & F {E #%

RBE_ZT——F+_A=t—HLFE
A+ 3,000/ 18 JE B E R RE M 17 18 SE AX
MimcEnEmMESRAERRE 2 5B

B e
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36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity settled share option schemes

Old share option schemes

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Old Share Option Scheme
include Directors, independent non-executive Directors,
and employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries
and associates. The Old Share Option Scheme became
effective upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange on 5 October 1997 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date. The Old Share Option Scheme was cancelled on
23 May 2006.

As at 31 December 2010, all the granted share options

under the Old Share Option Scheme were exercised.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Old Share Option Scheme held by

certain employees during the year:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 5 i R I

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

36. URB XA REAZRZ

DR AEE 2 BB

EBREE

ARARBERETS ([ERBRES])
FEUAT R B [ SR AN R B 2 IR R
BRZAERSEE -ERRENEZA
BRSEERRARRETMAMERA
FBERRIZER BUFATEZNE
B -EBRREAIN-NNEFETARR
BIARR BB RE A EM A - IEA A
HRC BRIFBUE B  BRIEBRE S
BAEMBEFTFDEBRS -EBRE
AEER -ETERFAA-T=RAEUK-

R-F-—FTF+_A=1+—H EBERE
AEIET A RO BREYETE-

TREBRFAARAETREMSER
gt A TR ZZBIEN

At
31 December
At 2010 and Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 January Exercised 31 December  grant of price of
of participant 2010 during 2010 2011 share options share options
R-E-BF
t=A=t-A
N-2-%F  R-B-3F  R-®--F BRE
SRENANER —-RA-H RET® tZA=+-H ERERLBEH THE
HK$
BT
Other employees 300,000 (300,000 - 31 March 2006 1.266
HitER “ZTRE
=A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes

On 23 May 2006, the Old Share Option Scheme was
cancelled and a New Share Option Scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted. The purpose of the New
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Directors to grant
options to selected Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options shall be determined by the Directors from
time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. Eligible Persons means any person

falling within one of the following classes:

() any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder, a person who
controls the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder (a “Category A Eligible Person”);

or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder (a

“Category B Eligible Person”);

and, for the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more

persons belonging to any of the above classes of persons.

# B U 5 ¥ A B

6. UBRBZAREBEZRS (#£)

DRAEHE 2 BIRETE ()
HiE R &
RZZTERNFRAZ+T=0 EBERET
I BUR - TR B &) ([ ARt
2| 1) R F B R - F7 B B RT 81 5 £/
TESRN BSERERTEEAERA
T ERREHAKEMEZERMIER
BRI RENBE - ERI S EMALTER
BRECZER KAESITHREESY
B AREERIIERAEZBERMIEL
BRzBEAMEE - AERALTIEEMES
RIFEP -2 AL

() AEBEMKERFHEFRMZERKE
S AE (A B PR AR AR Rl 2 R BER
EREZREREES (THAATH
T BREMBULIFNTES) -
BE (AEAERAL]) &

(i) ANKBEEMKE R R SHAMZERBR
AR AT B A AR R 2 R BT
EAEFZEAFKAEA (BEAER
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ML BEREA SIS 2
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36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme.
The Company can grant share options to subscribe upto
77,292,200 shares of the Company under the New Share
Option Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the

approval of shareholders of the Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Any option
to be granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-

executive Director who is the grantee of the options).

If a grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates) will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of options is required to be

approved by shareholders.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZE

6. UBRBZAREBEZRS (#£)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

The option period commences on the Commencement Date
(the date upon which the options are deemed to be granted
and accepted) of such options and ends on the close
of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth

anniversary thereof.

The exercise price per share shall be determined by the
Board, being at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date on which an option is offered to an
Eligible Person, which must be a business day (“‘Offer Date”);
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date, and (iii) the

nominal value of one share.

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date
of 23 May 2006.

Share options do not counter rights on the holders to

dividends or vote at shareholders meetings.

6. UBRBZAREBEZRS (#£)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

B F——F A=+ —AIFE

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme was
37,320,000, representing 1.13% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The vesting condition

of the options granted is the service period of the relevant

Directors or employees.

Details of specific category of share options are as follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

DRAEHE 2 BIRETE ()

HERESE ()

ARTG HAR -

Exercise period

BB ZEEEMNZFBOT:

Exercise price

6. UBRBZAREBEZRS (#£)

R-B——F+-_A=+—RH REHE
i T 81 0 35 M R R TT 6 2 BB B A
Kz B A 8B /&337,320,0008%  HHE R A
NAINZBEEETEBR21.13% B &
hBEEEZBBGREREHESHER

Number of

share option

RHAH BEY THH THE BREYA
HK$
BT
27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 26 February 2012 27 February 2012 to 26 May 2014 4.42 7,700,000
“Z——FRA-ttA “Z——FRA-1+tAZE —T-—F-A-t+tHZE
il ks Sl ks VAN = “E-MERAZTKA
27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 26 February 2013 27 February 2013 to 26 May 2014 4.42 11,550,000
“T——FRA=ttH “Z-——FfRA-t+tRAE e s i =
“Z-=FfZA=1+RXAH “Z-MERA=+RA
27 May 2011 27 May 2011 to 26 February 2014 27 February 2014 to 26 May 2014 4.42 19,250,000
—2——%RA-t+AH “Z——4%RA-ttHZE “T-MF-A=t++AZE
“E-ME-A=+xA —E-MERA=T/H
38,500,000

Exercisable at the end of

the reporting period

RBERRA FTE

164

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by Directors and certain employees

during the year:

22 I
,%/Ji i}

S 25 it % W

6. UBRBZAREBEZRS (#£)

DRAEHE 2 BIRETE ()
HERESE ()
TEREBEFANEERETREMFEZA
REEREZZSHER:

Outstanding

Granted Forfeited at

during during 31 December

Name of Directors/employees EEns EE the year the year 2011
i

—E——F

t=A=+-8

FRERH FRERK fe R AT 8

Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie BERA 10,450,000 - 10,450,000
Wu Yih Chin RENR 2,000,000 = 2,000,000
Employees B8 26,050,000 (1,180,000) 24,870,000
Total Fo 38,500,000 (1,180,000) 37,320,000

On 27 May 2011, 38,500,000 options were granted and the
estimated fair value of the options granted was HK$1.16 per

share.

The fair value of options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme was calculated using the Black-Scholes

pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at date of grant HK$4.42
Exercise price HK$4.42
Expected volatility 41.72%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.832%
Expected dividend yield 1.55%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical

volatility of the Company’s share price.

R-—ZT——FHA=++H" 38,500,000
MEREEERL ML ERE G
STAFEAEESRIA6E T

REBFBRESSR L 2 BREXFET

ERMAOAR-—FBRHTEEEAFTE-

ANZBABET

RELHRZRE

1T1EE

BRI
BEHHR
B R B A
BB =

It R

4,427 7T
4,427 7T
41.72%
3%F
0.832%
1.55%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 T 5 A A

For the year ended 31 December 2011

36.

37.

B F——F A=+ —AIFE

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity settled share option schemes (Continued)

New share option schemes (Continued)

Because the Black-Scholes pricing model requires the input
of highly substantive assumptions, including the volatility of
share price, changes in subjective input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$15,975,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: nil) in relation to share options granted under the New

Share Option Scheme by the Company.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the fair value of the combined net
assets value of the subsidiaries involved in the Group
reorganisation in September 1997 and the assets, liabilities
and undertakings which relate to the import and distribution
of cement carried out by Hong Kong Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited prior to the Group reorganisation (the
“Relevant Business”), as if they were acquired by the
Group when the subsidiaries and the Relevant Business
commenced operations, and the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign owned enterprises, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate an amount of not
less than 10% of its annual after tax profit to the statutory
reserve fund, which may be used to increase the paid-up

capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries with maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per
month and are charged to the profit and loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified

contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of approximately HK$30,722,000
(2010: HK$16,637,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of

the plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

39.

40.

HE=—F——F+ == —HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans, senior notes and amount due
to immediate holding company, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated losses/retained earnings. The
Directors review the capital structure on an annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debts.

39.

EXERER
AEBZEAERRRAEERNTER
BAABSETALE RNEREETE
ERERAEHREBERERTREAM

H-BEFREAEHEERRBRE NE -

AEBEZEAGRBRERFE (BHR
TER BEARBRENEBERARR
H) RARBEB AR GER (BREE#HT

B RERRAEBER/RERN) EF
BFEHERNEARB -FRILERSZ
— & i%‘\%)‘%ézﬁﬁiﬁ)&,\m%ﬁﬁ
AEB AR - AEER BB RS
TR KRB - AR BITER K
BMORBEKTOEERBELARE-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. €@ T A
Categories of financial instruments SRT A ZE5
2011 2010
—B—-—-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
Financial assets CREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BATEF AR
- held-for-trading investments —“REXZABIKRE 84,886 327,100
Loans and receivables (including cash and ~ EX K EUWZKIE (B iﬁ%&
cash equivalents) Re%E) 6,783,580 5,419,848
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 57,501 59,772
Financial liabilities TRMERE
Amortised cost DN 16,437,158 15,264,834
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z-ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
bank deposits and balances, trade and other payables,
bank loans, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
and amount due to immediate holding company. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, other price risk
and liquidity risk and the policies applied by the Group
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties,
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-standing.

The Group mainly trades on terms based on prepayments
and letters of credits in most of the transactions and as at
31 December 2011 the Group’s accounts receivable spread
over a number of counterparties. Thus, the management
considers that the risk is adequately monitored and does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all loan
receivables (2010: 100%) and 97.5% (2010: 96.9%) of the

trade receivables as at 31 December 2011.

The Group has also concentration of credit risk as the loan
receivables were due from six (2010: four) borrowers within

the government sector in the PRC.

In order to minimise the credit risk on the loan receivables,
the management of the Group closely monitor the follow-
up action taken to recover any overdue loans. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each borrower
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk on the loan receivables is significantly reduced.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the pledged bank deposits, time deposit
and fixed rate senior notes. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-
rate bank loans, loan receivables, amount due to an
immediate holding company and bank balances. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The fair value
interest rate risk on bank deposits is insignificant as the

fixed deposits are short-term.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continueq)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR and
benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by
The People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to variable interest
rates for financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the loan receivables and bank balances in the PRC
net of bank loans, other payables and long term
payable in the PRC at the end of the reporting period
and net balance was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2011 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$23,122,000 (2010: HK$18,802,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on

its variable-rate bank loans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

40. €@ T R (&)
ERREEAERKE ()

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (i)  EE L

The Group is mainly exposed to United States Dollars
(*USD”) and HKD.

Certain inter-group balances, bank balances and
bank loans of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
loan. However, management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% in exchange rate of
USD and HKD against relevant functional currency of
RMB, while all other variables are held constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%

change in foreign currency rates.

AEEETEFRET([ET])RE
TCRLB -

AEBEZETEBRMER RITHE
RN IRITERIAINESIE - NEER
5 I 48 A BRSNS B R 2 SIS R IR
o AT B ERTEZERBINEE
R AREFERZREIPERIE
[

HREE DT
TRANAEERETRETH AR
N EEARE ZERAIGEASNLA
BEH s BRE RRAEEMA#
AEHEFIE - HFRESTERR
AR ZINETNEERIRR RNR
FHRZINEN K% B B AR H K
=

2011

—E——F

HK$’000

FER

Decrease (increase) in post-tax profit for REZBRTE R AR (380)

the year

- if RMB weakens against USD — AR HET5HE (78,575)

— if RMB strengthens against USD —fMAREHETRE 73,575

- if RMB weakens against HKD —HARBLETHS (22,973)

— if RMB strengthens against HKD —fMARBEABILES 22,973
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

40. €@ T R (&)

BHEMEERRERK (&)

s E e (&)
() EEmEE (&)

BB (&)

2010

—E—FF

HK$’000

FAT

Decrease (increase) in post-tax profit for ANEF ERRF & = AR A (3 0)

the year

— if RMB weakens against USD —fMARERETIEE (37,265)

— if RMB strengthens against USD —fMARBHEETRE 37,265

- if RMB weakens against HKD — AR H BT (17,912)

— if RMB strengthens against HKD — AR LB TRE 17,912

(i) Other price risk
The Group’s equity investments and the investment
funds with underlying equity investments at the end
of the reporting period exposed the Group to equity
security price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is

mainly concentrated on quoted investment funds.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks in respect

of held for trading investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective held-for-trading
investments had been 20% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$16,977,000
(2010: HK$65,420,000) as a result of the changes in

fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
loans and ensures compliance with loan covenants. As
detailed in Note 29, during the current year, the Group
has breached certain loan covenants. The management is
currently in discussion with the relevant bank to renegotiate

the terms of the loan.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$3,138,937,000 (2010: HK$2,490,308,000). Details of

which are set out in Note 29.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at

the end of the reporting period.
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BRABR YRR EERZHNZRE < #
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ETERRN -ERERELEMBART
7w A EFTRE R B AR o

AEEBXRERTEREARDES ZE
ERR-R=F-——FT-A=T—8"
REBERISHAM W ARB A RITERE
& 49/53,138,937,0008 7T (- B — T 4 :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &%

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

A o B 2% e B i
—E—— A=t —ALFE

40. €@ T R (&)

BHEBEERREREK (£)

B ELmEE (F)
B E T RFE R &

Repayable Total
on 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
demand months to1year 1-5years 5+years  cash flows amount
RERE iR Z RER
HE® -Z=f8A =t3 ¥t IFENE BERAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT T THET T TET THT
2011 —2--F
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRMERE
Trade and other payables ERE5EHR
H AR 5B 6,610 1,986,473 231,475 - - 2,224,558 2,224,241
Bank loans RITER 1,537,500 944,614 3,117,167 8,151,819 - 13,751,100 13,187,733
Amount due to a non-controlling B — R 3EE AR AR R 708
shareholder 74,093 - - - - 74,093 74,093
Amount due to immediate holding company FEff B Bk A 71508 - 3,226 9,677 946,502 - 959,405 933,600
Long term payable RHEERMFE - 300 907 18,833 = 20,040 17,491
1,618,203 2,934,613 3,359,226 9,117,154 - 17,029,196 16,437,158
2010 —E-%%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRER
Trade and other payables ERBSERK
H it e 5IR 3,834 1,618,062 449,200 - - 2071,008 2,071,006
Bank loans ROTER - 428416 3,594,386 7,999,465 792,202 12,814,559 12,019,024
Senior notes BEZR - 8,010 142,724 - - 150,734 139,396
Amounts due to non-controling R ERRIRR 5B
shareholders 93,785 - - - - 93,785 93,785
Amount due to immediate holding company [E{E B2 RFHE - 2,687 8,062 943,149 - 953,898 932,400
Long term payable Eﬁﬁﬁ 3% = 130 264 9,264 = 9,658 9,133
97,619 2,057,305 4,194,636 8,951,878 792,292 16,093,730 15,264,834
The amounts included above for variable interest rate (EEDER:) b Pl jRm e R - il | e

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included

in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As detailed in Note 29, as at 31 December
2011, certain subsidiaries of the Group breached certain
financial covenants as stipulated in the loan agreements
entered into by the subsidiaries with a total carrying amount
of RMB1,250 million (equivalent to HK$1,537,5 million) and
accordingly the amount has been included in the “repayable

on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis.

At TR EXAREZFTESRE AR
FEHNETASHEERE

BEEREKEEBERZRITERGTA Lt
FEA DT [RERER] REA -
MizE2offil - R=ZFT——F+ A =+—
B AEBECZETHBAREREMIY
ZERBEATR2E THMBERL EE
#E A AKR1,250,000,0007T (HEER
1,5637,500,000% 7T) - Atk - EKIEE

FEA LB B DTz [12 2 REE R
7 o

£V I PR A A PR )
2011 4E#t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 P oE——

FHA=+—AILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to

quoted market bid prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally

accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, pledged bank deposits, time deposits, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder and senior notes approximate
their respective fair values due to the relatively short maturity
of these financial instruments. The Group’s bank loans
and amount due to immediate holding company are mainly

variable-rate borrowings which are carrying at prevailing

market rate.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continueq)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on

the degree to which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

assets.

e level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices); and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

40. €@ T R (&)
CREERSCBABIATE (£)

REEH BN X ER L FETE

TREHROT AR FEERRAGFEZS
BITEASN ERABEAVERES S

—ZE=R-

s F R RVFEFENURERRE
EEdRmg 2 RE CREAR)FE
s

s B RVEFENKRE-RME
BZBEANMAEEXBEN S B
Bz AER B (AERE
R MEE (BREER)FEMRS:
I54

s F=ZARVEAEREBAAUBRREZ
MHER (THABRZBAER) HE
ELBENEN B AGETAFTEMR

=]
< °

2011 2010
= —TFF
Level 1 Level 1
E—® 1
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET

Held-for-trading investments BIEXSRB KA
Listed equity securities RS 31,532 271,855
Quoted investment fund BEREES 53,354 55,245
Total &t 84,886 327,100

There were no transfers between Levels in the current year.

RAFEAES R L EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41. B R &IE

2011 2010
—B-—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of ERIAERNERE BT
acquisition of property, plant and BiE2EEME BEX
equipment contracted for but not BECEART
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 1,092,406 1,903,017
Capital expenditure in respect of BB RNERE M EHRE
acquisition of subsidiaries contracted BEZIWERNBRARZE
for but not provided in the consolidated R (HEE)
financial statements (note) 1,078,166 -
2,170,572 1,903,017

note:

Amount represents consideration contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements for the
acquisition of three groups of subsidiaries operating cement
businesses in the PRC. As at 31 December 2011, the
acquisition were still subject to certain conditions before
completion amongst which, includes the approval by the
regulatory government bodies in other jurisdictions. The
deposits paid have been included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as deposits paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, one of the acquisitions, Scitus (Cement)
China Hidings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Scitus Cement”)

was completed, as disclosed in Note 45.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

43.

outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

22 I
,%/Ji i}

HE=F——F = J=+— AL FE

42 BEMY AR

S 25 it % W

R IR - A S B AT B 2 G
Wy B RIERERIEES M ABG S R

o HEEmBAET:

2011 2010

—F——F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHET

Within one year —FA 6,153 6,123
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFEERERF

(BREEEMSE) 24,612 24,490

Over five years BiBAF 60,909 66,828

91,674 97,441

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its rented premises. Leases are

negotiated for an average term of three years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, assets with the following carrying
amounts have been pledged to secure bank loans of the
Group (Note 29) or as a security for the letters of credit
and similar obligations provided by banks in regard to the
Group’s purchase of plant equipments or as performance

guarantee in relation to certain sales or purchases contracts.

43.

REMOBESEAREREETHEM R
ENzEE BEBROFHRE=F-

EEHER
RZF——F+=ZA=+—8 ' UTKRE
BZEERER UERAEEZRITE
R (Hat29) SNERBITHAEEBEEKFE
BEREZEABFIEUTEZERRK
HETEEGNERBROER:

2011 2010

= —F-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& E 3,612,780 3,753,974
Prepaid lease payments TN ERIE 799,287 1,001,340
Mining rights PRAE 1 117,130 -
Pledged bank deposits B IRRITERK 134,348 29,454
4,663,545 4,784,768

£ VR 12 R4 A R ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

44. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 4. BEALTRS
In addition to the transactions and balances set out in Notes BRIAMIEE9 20 26 27 + 28 30X 32F7 it
9, 20, 26, 27, 28, 30 and 32, the Group entered into the R RERIN RAFE  NEBE B #ETT
following material related party transactions during the year: THERBEALTRS:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Wiz TET FET
()  Rental expenses payable to () EN—HRRWBARzHEE
a fellow subsidiary ER (@) 4,968 4,320
(i)  Rental expenses payable to iy EN—2BEEALzHEEAR
a related party (note 1) (Htett1) (@) 1,195 1,115
(i) Purchases of cement and (i) MREERA A
clinker from the ultimate BB KR RFAR
holding company (@) 34,742 82,135
(v) Sales of cement to a related party (iv) [Al—& @@ A LHHEKE
(note 2) (Hfit2) (b) - 5,611
(v)  Purchases of clinker from v) M—EBEEALTEERH
a related party (note 3) (K#1723) (b) 23,147 59,164
(v Transportation and management (v ESRZHNBRR ZEH K
services fee payable to fellow EERGE
subsidiaries (a 263,685 173,593
(vii) Maintenance service fee of (vii) FERTRRME A E 2 B
a computer software system AR EEREE
payable to fellow subsidiaries (a 6,252 5,473
(vi) Management fee payable to (vii) BN —BHEALTZERE
a related party (note 4) (Ktit4) (@) 11,839 7,776
(x) Trademark fee payable to (ix) EN—2EEALTZEEZ
a related party (note 4) BRZE (fida) (@) 4,128 4,355
(x)  Sales of raw materials to x) M—ABEQREERME
an associate (b) 9,825 6,484
(xi) Purchase of raw materials from (xi) mA—fEHE A REERME
an associate (b) 6,543 7,222
(xii) Sales of cement to an associate  (xi)) [A]— & &k & A & #HE KR (b) 70,141 59,301

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

44. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

notes:

(1) The related party is an associate of the ultimate holding

company.

(2)  The related party is the subsidiary of a substantial shareholder.

(3) The related party is a subsidiary of the non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

(4) The related party is the holding company of the non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

(a)  The prices of these transactions were determined between the

parties with reference to the agreements signed.

(b)  The prices of these transactions were determined between the

parties with reference to market prices.

During the year, the remuneration of key management
personnel which represents the short-term benefits of
Directors remuneration is approximately HK$9,459,000
(2010: HK$5,586,000) as set out in Note 11.

44. BB ALK B (&)
Byt -

(1) ZBEEALDHREBRAB 2B ERE -

(2 HBEALDNIERRZHBLR

(B) ZEBEALRART—REHEREZIEE
P& A% ER 2 B B8 &

@) ZEEANLTRART —REHEQEZIEE
e e e NG

(@) ZREXHZERBINELTZ2EERITZ

175 & B E

o

(b) ZEXHZEBRAINEFTZ2EMHER
T

i

WM IR RER TEEFE A
BrHFM(EEEMe 2B &N A
9,459,000/ 7T (= —=F : 5,586,000/
JC) °
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 August 2011, Upper Value entered into an Acquisition
Agreement with certain independent third parties for the
acquisition of approximately 97.94% of the issued share
capital of the Scitus Cement (China) Holdings Limited
(“Scitus Cement”) at an aggregate cash consideration of
US$130,210,000 (equivalent to HK$1,011,732,000) and by
the Company’s issuance of the warrants. Scitus Cement
is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacture and sale of cement
and clinker in Guizhou and Sichuan. Such acquisition was
completed on 6 January 2012 and Scitus Cement which
indirectly hold majority interests in several cement, clinker
and concrete manufacturing companies in the southwestern
region of the PRC (the “Manufacturing Companies”) became
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group on the same
date. Also, up to the date of the issue of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group is still in the midst of
determining the financial effect of the acquisition of Scitus

Cement.

On 13 February 2012, the Group received copies of
arbitration notices issued by China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission dated 10 February
2012 together with the relevant arbitration applications in
respect of certain pre-emptive rights held by non-controlling
shareholders in the Manufacturing Companies under the

relevant joint venture agreements.

In view of the notices received, the Group is in the
process of collecting information in relation to the potential
arbitrations and will consider seeking relevant legal advice.
Further announcement(s) concerning further developments
of the potential arbitrations will be made as and when

appropriate.

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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45. R EHI R EE

R—ZZE——% A\ AWMA  Upper Value
BETBILE=ZAT L HRERZE N
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46. SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT@
o B WA 0 ok W
HEZF——F1T-A=1T—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Nominal value

46. it B 1 ]
ARARR_F——FR-_FT—FTF+=H
Et+—HAZFENBRAAIZHFBENT

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRATLER
HEARERE MBI, &R M EAEE EhEREEEERLG TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
B il
Anhui King Bridge Cement Ltd* The PRC Registered capital = 60%  Manufacture and
ZERRBREERD A" i US$15,000,000 distribution of
it & A slag powder
15,000,000% 7. HERD HEED
Chiefolk Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary = 70%  Investment holding
0 HK$1,000,000 REER
TRk
1,000,000/ 7T
Guangan Changxing The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture and
Cement Co., Ltd*! F US$29,990,000 distribution of
B2 EFIRARA A AR cement and clinker
29,990,000 7T BER D B RAH
Guizhou Kaili Rui An Jian Cai Co., The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture and
Ltd. (acquired in 2011)*! H RMB139,660,500 distribution of
BN EIHRZENBRAR AR cement and clinker
(R=B——FKE) AR #139,660,5007T BER D B RAH
Guizhou Kong On The PRC Registered capital = 65%  Manufacture and
Cement Company Limited H US$13,350,000 distribution of
(acquired in 2011)* HHEAR cement and clinker
EMBRKRERAE 13,350,000 7 BUE R A HAR R

(R=Z——FKE)"

£ VR 12 R4 A R ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ=—F——4#+=H=+—HI FZF

46. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. B A T (#£)

Nominal value

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTEER
HWEARER AL EMEAREE BEEEEERLE ETEER
Directly Indirectly
B il
HKC Investments Limited Taiwan Ordinary = 100%  Investment holding
BRERERBAR AT = NT$695,000,000 REER
R
695,000,000%7 & ¥
Hong Kong Cement Hong Kong Ordinary = 100% Import and distribution
Company Limited B HK$10,000 of cement
TR EARDHKE
10,000/ 7T
Jiangsu TCC Investment The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.* H US$100,000,000 BEER
THAERERRAAM RN
100,000,000% 7T
Jingyang Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary = 100%  Investment holding
RGEXARAR B HK$24,000,000 BEER
TR
24,000,000/ 7T
Jurong TCC Cement The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Mining of limestone
Co., Ltd.* H US$223,000,000 and production and
ARARKEARA A HMER sales of cement and
223,000,000 7T cement products
REARAREEREE
IKJE R E
Koning Concrete Limited Hong Kong Ordinary = 100% Investment holding
B HK$100 REZR
T AAR100% T

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z -ZF——F+-HA=+—HIFZE

46. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. B A =) (&)

Nominal value

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER
HWEARER AL EMEAREE BEEEEERLE ETEER
Directly Indirectly
B il
TCC Anshun Cement Company The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Limited (previously known as H US$59,990,000 distribution of
Guizhou Anshun HMER cement and clinker
Changxing Cement 59,990,000 7T BUER P KR R AR
Co., Ltd)*!
2k (RIE) KEERAR (RiBEM
JEE EKRARBERR) X
TCC Chongging Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited*! H US$65,000,000 distribution of
Bk (BE)KEERARM HMER cement and clinker
65,000,000 7T SUE R HAKOR R
TCC Fuzhou Cement The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.*" H US$16,250,000 distribution of cement
BINGRAKERRA R RN SLER D HIKR
16,250,000 7T
TCC Fuzhou Yangyu Port The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Provision of port facility
Co., Ltd.*" H US$5,000,000 services
BN BISEER QA AR R A5 58 R e AR 75
5,000,000 7T
TCC (Guigang) Cement Ltd.*! The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
2k (EB)KEERA RN H US$217,875,900 distribution of
HMER cement and clinker
217,875,900 T SUE R HAKOR R

£ VR 12 R4 A R ]
2011 4E#

185



186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B T S A T R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

46. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

B F——F A=+ —AIFE

46. B A =) (&)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRTEER
HWEARER AL EMEAREE BEEEEERLE ETEER
Directly Indirectly
B il
TCC Hong Kong Cement British Virgin Ordinary = 100%  Property holding
Development Limited Island (“BVI") Us$10 RENE
/Hong Kong Deferred™*
RERTRS US$90
(RBEXES]) LBRI0OET
S B BT fig
90% T
TCC Liaoning Cement Company PRC Registered capital - 83.89%  Manufacture and
Limited (previously known as H RMB371,000,000 distribution of
Liaoning Changging AR cement and clinker
Cement Co., Ltd)* AR #371,000,0007T BUER P KR R AR
Bk (EE)KREERAR
(RIEEEEBKEERAA)
TCC Liuzhou Company Hong Kong Ordinary - 70%  Investment holding
Limited B HK$10,000 BEER
BRMMER A E @[% 10,0007 7T
TCC Liuzhou Construction The PRC Registered capital = 42%*  Manufacture and
Materials Company H US$13,500,000 distribution of
Limited* HMER slag powder
PN &R E M B IR 2 R 13,500,000 7T SLER D HEEY
TCC Yingde Cement The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd*! H US$219,400,000 distribution of cement
Bk (RE)IORER AR HMER and clinker
219,400,000% 7T SUE R HAKOR R
Ulexite Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
HERLEHSE/BR US$200 REER
L@AR200%E T

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Nominal value

fo B U B5 ¥ A B

46. B A =) (&)

HE=F——F = J=+— AL FE

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRALER
HWEARER AL EMEAREE BEEEEERLE ETEER
Directly Indirectly
B il
Upper Value Investments BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary = 100%  Investment holding
Limited HBRARS,/ BE US$10,600 REER
T AR10,600% 7T
Yingde Dragon The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture and
Mountain Cement H RMB428,110,000 distribution of

Co, Ltd™

RERUKEEREEAR"

*

law.

At EAARE
428,110,000

Registered as equity joint venture registered under the PRC

* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise registered

under the PRC law.

*k

A subsidiary of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

and accordingly, is accounted for as subsidiary by virtue of the

Company’s control over it.

The deferred shares of TCC Hong Kong Cement Development

Limited are non-voting, carry no rights to dividends and are

only entitled to a return of capital when the surplus exceeds
US$1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected

the results, assets, or liabilities of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Apart from the senior notes as disclosed in Note 31, none

of the subsidiaries had in issue any debt securities at 31

December 2010.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Ho 5 E 22
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ET+F —ETN\FE —TEhF C—T-TF CZB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT TET TET FHT THER
Results #E
Revenue & 1,829,168 2,822,827 3,953,940 8,125,854 11,266,196
Profit (loss) for the year, before AR HH AR
impairment loss on intangible EWEERERBE
assets and impairment ko HE R
loss of property, plant and iR EBER
equipment, attributable to AREE % A
owners of the Company (E18) 215,994 (126,956) 120,254 784,053 1,637,880
Profit (loss) for the year, AREEB ANEER
attributable to owners of FERF (EE)
the Company (3,506,645) (155,523) 120,254 784,053 1,637,880
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment 1% BiE & &5 3,873,850 5,053,368 8,815,063 12,816,206 15,864,953
Prepaid lease payments BB EHRE 714,897 702,429 907,934 1,599,818 1,745,207
Intangible assets B EE 39,447 7,839 812,578 2,648,561 2,647,565
Mining rights g 56,273 55,990 205,512 398,562 406,633
Interests in associates and loan B A A)#EzS
to an associate BERQ Té%x 130,199 133,085 131,208 1,416,976 1,456,066
Long term deposits RBZES 720 720 720 720 828
Long term loan receivables R EER - - 84,750 109,740 87,147
Deposits paid for the acquisition  Ft U EEME  BE K&
of property, plant and HEREMEE
equipment and other assets SEN AT 645,713 302,561 245,969 712,127 578,050
Deposits paid for acquisition of gt UK E& KT B A 7
subsidiaries YHZE® 804,410 720,666
Available-for-sale investments At HE&E & & 71,564 58,713 54,509 59,772 57,501
Deferred tax asset EEHBEE 33 33 - 1,275 879
Pledged bank deposits BEEARITER - - - 2,360 3,970
Current assets MBI EE 1,943,076 2,104,941 3,017,279 7,263,395 9,297,158
Total assets BEE 7,475,772 8,419,679 15,079,932 27,029,512 32,866,623
Liabilities &\
Current liabilities mEAE 1,441,178 2,188,968 6,804,239 6,325,390 8,380,865
Other non-current liabilities Hip3EmenaE 1,967,728 2,225,499 1,560,867 9,431,101 8,829,807
Deferred tax liabilities EREFHIERE 147,885 143,748 202,634 364,091 358,144
Total liabilities mafE 3,556,791 4,558,215 8,567,740 16,120,582 17,568,816

TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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